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SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited

Regd. Office: Unit 401 & 402, 4th Floor, Aggarwal Millennium Tower, E- 1,2,3, Netaji
Subhash Place, Wazirpur, New Delhi - 110034

NOTICE

Notice {s hereby given that the 19" Annual General Meeting of the Company will be
held on Friday, September 29, 2017 at 11:00 AM at the registered office of the
Company at Unit 401 & 402, 4th Floor, Aggarwal Millennium Tower, E- 1,2,3, Netaji
Subhash Place, Wazirpur, New Delhi — 110034 to consider the following items of
business:

Ordinary Business:
1. Adoption of Accounts

To consider, approve and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31# March 2017 including the Audited Balance Sheet of
the Company as at 31* March 2017 and Profit & Loss Account and the Cash
Flow Statement along with the schedules and notes appended thereto for the
year ended on that date together with the report of the Auditors and Directors
thereon along with the report of Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

2, Fixing of Auditors Remuneration

To consider fixation of Statutory Auditors Remuneration or to determine the
manner of fixing the remuneration for the Financial Year 2017-18.

3. To approve Interim Dividend
To confirm the interim dividend of Rs. 1 (i.e. 10%) per equity Share for the

financial year ended March 31, 2017, amounting to Rs. 785,000,002 declared
by the Board of Directors.

By Order of the Boa:g of Directors

For SBI Cards and Payment Se ices Pvt. Ltd.
C ecretary
Date :14-0%- 2017
Place :Gu-J. ‘K-l—ﬁlf\-
NOTES
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend the meeting and the proxy need not be a member of the

Company.

CIN: Us5999DL1998PTCG93849 # Telephone No.: 0124-4389803 # Fax No.; 0124-3987306
Email address: feedback@sbicard.cam# website: www.sbicard.com



The instrument appointing the proxy should be deposited at the Registered

Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of

the meeting.

3. All the relevant documents in respect of accompanying notice are open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all days (except on

Saturday and Sunday), between 11.00 AM to 5.00 PM. up to the date of
AGM.

CIN: U65999DL1998PTC093849 # Telephone No.: 0124-4589803 # Fax No.: 0124-3987306
Email address: feedback@sbicard.cam# website: www .shicard.com



Form No. MGT-1]
Proxy form
{Pursuant to section 103(6) of the Companics Act, 2013 and rude 19(3) of the Companies
(Managemeni and Administration) Rules, 2014}
CIN: U63999DLI998PTC093849
Name of the company: SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Registered office: Unit 401 & 402,4™ Floor, Aggarwal Millennium Tower, E 1,2,3,
Netaji Subhash Place, Wazirpur, New Delhi, Delhi - INDIA - 110034

Name of the member (s) :
Registered address :
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Iid ;
DPID:

I/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name @ i
Address :

E-mail Id :

Signature 5.....ccceeveeene or failing him

2 Name i,
Address:

E-mail 1d :

Signature:................, or failing him

3. Name e,
Address:

E-mail Id:
Signatures.......ooviinn.

as myfour proxy to attend and vote {on a poll) for mefus and on myfour behalf at the
.............. Annual general meeting/ Extraerdinary-senerabmeeting of the company, to be held on the
September 29, 2017 at 11:00 a.m. a1 Unit 401 & 402, 4th Floor, Aggarwal Millennium Tower, E- 1,2,3,
Netaji Subhash Place, Wazirpur, New Delhi - 110034 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No. Lo
Resolution No. 2.....ceieveiiiiiecennieneinie
Resolution No. 3..c.viviiiiiiiiiiiiiin e
Signed this...... day of......... 20....
Aflix
Signature of sharcholder Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be cffective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered OfTice of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting,
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY
Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Nineteenth Annual Report along with the
Audited Annual Accounts of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2017.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY & STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

The financial performance of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2017
and for the previous year iy summarized below: -

Rs. In Crores
S.No | Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
1 Income 3363.49 2491.78
2 | Finance Cost 521.58 430.32
3 | Operating & Other Expenses 1786.98 1270.75)
4 | Depreciation and Amortization 1.04 0.84
S | Profit /({Loss) Before Tax 598.46 438.18
8 |Tax 208.05 154.28
9 | Profit /(Loss) After Tax 390.41 283.9
10 | Add: Opening surplus in statement of profit and loss 122,49 -10.15
11 | Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve 78.08 56.78
12 | Interim equity dividend 78.50 78.50
(amount Rs. 1 per share)
13 | Tax on Interim equity dividend { 15.98 153.98
14 | Balance of P&L Account C/F to Balance Sheet 340.33 122.49

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

In FY'16-17, your company has generated Profit after Tax of Rs. 390.4 Cr as against
Rs 283.9 Cr in FY 15-16 at YOY growth of 37%.

Acquisition of new accounts has grown YOY by 50% leading to 28% growth in our cards
base to 4.6 MM as compared to 3.6 MM. Our portfolio spends has shown an YOY
increase of 51% to close at Rs. 43,436 Cr. The growth rates in both spends and cards
have been phenomenal and compares favourably against industry growth rates of 22%
and 36% in cards and spends respectively. The impressive growth rate has enabled the
company to achieve 2 position in both spends and cards category.



Growth in Cards and Spends have enabled our Receivables to clock an increase of 39%
YOY. The company is closed monitoring it's pre and post acquisition quality. The
portfolio growth is taking place without compromising on partfolio quality. Gross NPA
level for FY'16-17 has shown a downward trend to close at 1.6% as compared to 2.0%
previous year.

Your company continuously reviews it's existing product suite and explores
opportunities in the market for new tie-ups and new product launches to offer best value
proposition to customers. We have launched seven new products during the current
financial year. We refreshed our exiting Signature Card and introduced “Elite” Card with
enhanced features to cardholders. An exclusive variant of Elite Card was launched for
SBIl-Xclusive wealth management customers. The company launched its 2% cobrand
card with Future Group namely SBI Central Card. We launched two other cobranded
cards with Karnataka Bank and Chennai Metro. In order to target the youth, we
launched SBI Students Plus Card for students in colleges and premier institutes.

As an initiative towards enabling digital India, We have also introduced a new “SBl
Unnati Card” to focus exclusively to SBI customers.

On the digital front, your company has progressed phenomenally by ramping up its
digital presence in web and mobile space,

SBI Card website receives #14 MM visitors per month with 9.4 MM unique visitors.
Close to half our cross sell sales take place through our website. We have also added
additional following features on our website:

o Online KYC document submission for renewal of KYC through
website

o Add-on Plus where customer can set the new mobile number for
Add on card related notification and select a different credit limit
for the Add-on Card

o CLick2Buy functionality for Encash and Flexipay where
customer can login through the OTP through SMS to book Encash
or Flexipay on website

o Career Website Integration with SBI Card website

¢ Add-on KYC to collect the KYC documents of the Add ON Card
holder to ensure a complete digital process

o MySBIWorld on onlinesbi.com, this project enable the linkage of
SBI Card post login section with Online SBI post login section so
the customers can view their SBI credit card information on the
Online SBI itself

o Webform functionality for complaint management

Our SBI Card mabile application has 3 MM+ logins per month. We have added new
functionalities to the application this year namely, online rewards redemption, Estore
buy integration with Goibibo and cross sell booking functionality.



We have enhanced our presence of social media platforms with 9 lac+ followers in
facebook and 1.5 lacs~ fans in twitter. During the year we introduced our presence on
Instagram too to cater to Travel & Fashion customer segments,

PROSPECTS

SBl Cards envisions making life simple for our cardholders by offering a superior
customer experience, enhanced value proposition above competition and world class
products to serve our customers. In the current financial year, Your Company has
reached to 2n¢ position both in terms of no, of Cards as well as spends on Cards, We
have also introduced new products and enhanced our service levels.

The company is focussed on growing our portfolio in a profitable manner and keeping
a close watch on the portfolio health. SBI Card will concentrate on increasing its
market share in cards and spends to achieve a superlative market position in the
industry.

With this objective in mind, we have launched “Project Shikhar®. One of the primary
objective of this project is to ramp up sourcing from SBI customer base. We have already
launched a product “Unnati” and are in the process of iaunching more products for this
segments, We are also reviewing our internal processes/policies to enable faster
turmarcund and superior customer experience. For open market sourcing, we will
explore new distribution channels and expand our footprint to ramp up sourcing. We
will also continue to explore new Co-brand tie-ups to expand our coverage in areas of
Retail, lifestyle, e-com and hospitality. This may require additional investments in the
short run but will pay dividends in the long run with respect to profitability and industry
position,

We have grown our commercial card base phenomenally this year and shall continue to
focus on this segment as well to grow our portfolic. We shall focus on large and medium
corporates for stable and profitable growth and shall continue to add value to our
customers through premium service experience. The recent changes in KYC regime by
allowing customers to complete through e-kyc using Aadhar biometrics offers
simplification in customer acquisition process. We initiated a project this year to obtain
KYC through Aadhar this year. We plan to leverage this facility to greater volumes next
year to simplify our processes.

We remain committed to maximise value all our stakeholders, internal and external,
including our customers, employees, shareholders and business partners. The business
and financial performance of the company has been improving year on year. Our strong
customer base, robust processes and internal control along with strong parentage and
patronage of State Bank of India provides us a platiorm to reach greater heights in times
to come.

There has been no change in the nature of business during the year under review.

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, your Company did not have any subsidiary, associate
and joint venture company.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

With the Public announcement of GE made on 10th April 2015 with respect to the
reduction of the size of financial business, State Bank of India (the current shareholder)
has proposed to increase its stake in the Company to 74% and the balance shares would
be bought by a minority shareholder.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated
under the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016 dated 01-09-2016, is presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual
Report.

DIVIDEND

In this fiscal, the company has achieved net profit of Rs. 390 Cr @ a growth rate of 37%
vs previous year. In view of the commendable financial performance of the company,
your Directors have declared an interim dividend of Rs. 1.00 {i.e. 10 %} per equity share
(last year Rs. 1 (i.e. 10 %) per equity share} during the financial year ended March 31,
2017, amounting to Rs. 78,50,00,002/- and Tax on the same amounting to Rs.
15,98,07,530/~ aggregating to Rs. 94,48,07,532/- which is being put up to the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, No further dividend is being declared this
year.

RESERVES

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company appropriated Rs. 780,815,569
towards the Statutory Reserves {Rs. 567,801,390/~ in FY 2015-16) in accordance with
Section 453-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Also, an amount of Rs. 764,041 was utilized from Capital Reserve towards Share based
employee compensation cost for the FY 2016-17,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section
188(1} of the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AQC-2, is appended as
Annexure 1 to the Board's Report. Further, the policy on dealing with Related Party
Transactions is also appended as Annexure 2 to the Board's Report.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY
As per the Reserve Bank of India norms applicable for NBFC, the company is required

to keep a Capital Adequacy Ratio {(CAR) of 15%. company's CAR is well above the
regulatory requirement at 17.06% with 12.72% as Tier 1 Capital.



DEBENTURES
a. Issue and Allotment

During the Financial Year 2016-17, your Company raised Rs. 200 Crores by issue and
allotment of 2000 Fixed Rate, Unsecured, Rated, Taxable, Redeemable, Subordinated
Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10,00,000/- each in the nature of subordinated debt
constituting Tier Il Capital of the Company.

b. Appointment of Trustee in place of retiring Trustee

Further, SBI Trustee Company Limited for the Debenture Series 4 had submitted notice
of retirement from its capacity as trustee for the Debenture Holders vide letter dated
December 29, 2016, pursuant to prevailing applicable laws in relation to debenture
issuance and debenture trusteeship, in particular the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (including any amendments thereto).
The retirement shall be effective from May 8, 2017.

Your Company has with effect from May 8, 2017, with the permission of the Board
appointed Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL} as Trustee of the Debenture Holders of
Debenture allotted on September 28, 2012 under Debenture Series 4.

CHANGE IN REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT [RTA)

During the year under review your Company appointed Skyline Financial Services Pvt.
Ltd. as Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company to carry out the activities of registry
and transfer of Shares of the Company in place of Sharepro Services (India) Pvi. Ltd.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the year under review your Company invested Rs. 10010 in 1001 equity shares
of SBI Foundation at the rate of Rs. 10 per share (face valuej by way of
purchase/transfer of such shares from/by State Bank of India.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Composition of the Board of Director is in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
RBI Directions. Board consists of eight Directors namely Smt. Arundhati Bhattacharya,
Shri Dinesh Kumar Khara, Shri Neeraj Vyas, Shri Ryan Armand Zanin, Shri Banmali
Agrawala, Shri Ashwini Kumar Sharma, Smt. Saraswathy Athmanathan and Shri
Ashish Sharma (who resigned {rom the directorship of the company with effect from the
conclusion of the Board Meeting held on August 09, 2017.) Shri Vishal Gulati (DIN
07564924) was appointed as the nominee Director with effect from conclusion of the
Board Meeting held on August 09, 2017.



Following changes are being reported in the comnposition of Board of Directors during the
FY 2016-17 and up to the date of the report:

S. No. Director Appointment Cessation/resignation
(FY 2016-17) (FY 2016-17)
1. Shri Narasimhachari - July 21, 2016
Krishnamachari {Resignation)
2. Shri Prashant Kumar July 21, 2016 January 19, 2017
(Appointed as (Resignation)
Nominee Director
Director)
3. Shri V G Kannan - July 30, 2016
{Resignation)
9. Smit. Saraswathy | September 12, 2016 | -
Athmanathan (Appointed as
Nominee Director
Director)
5. | Shri Ryan Armand Zanin September 23, 2016
{Regularised as
Nominee Director
Director)
6. | Shri Dinesh Kumar Khara| November 1, 2016
(Appointed as
Nominee Director
Director}
7. Shri Neeraj Vyas January 31, 2017 -
{Appointed as
Nominee Director of
SBI])
8. Shri Percival Sam Billimoria | - June 12, 2017
{Resignation)
9. | Shri Ashish Sharma - Resignation
{With effect from the
conclusion of the
Board Meeting held on
August 09, 2617)
10. | Shri Vishal Gulati Appeinted as
Nominee Director of
GECMOI with effect
from the conclusion
of the Board Meeting
heid on August 09,
2017

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the contribution made by
Shri V G Kannan, Shri Narasimhachari Krishnamachari, Shri Prashant Kumar, Shri
Percival Sam Billimoria and Shri Ashish Sharma during their tenure on the Board of
the Company.



Company has three Key Managerial Personnel namely Shri Vijay Kumar Jasuja, Manager
designated as CEO, Shri Praveen Singh, CFO and Ms. Payal Mittal, Company Secretary
as on March 31, 2017.

During the financial year 2016-17, Shri Vijay Kumar Jasuja has been re-appointed as
the Manager designated as Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from July
9, 2016 to January 31, 2018. Also, Shri Praveen Singh was appointed as the CFO with
effect from November 1, 2016. Shri Digmanu Gupta was relieved of his duties as CFO
on September 9, 2016.

NUMEER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

6 meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. The Board met on 27-04-2016,
04-07-2016, 28-07-2016, 01-11-2016, 31-01-2017, 29-03-2017. The maximum interval between
any two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as preseribed in the Companies Act, 2013,

The details of the meetings attended by directors during the {inancial year 2016-17 are

as follows:
5. No. | Name of Directors/ Member DIN Status No. of Meetings
Attended
1. Smt Arundhati Bhattacharya| 02011213 Chairman 3
2. Shri Dinesh Kumar Khara 06737041 Director 3
appointed orl
01-11-2016
3. Shri Neeraj Vyas 07053788 Director 2
appointed on
31-01-2017
4, Smt Saraswathy Ahmanathan| 06798837 Director 3
appointed on|
12-09-2016
i S5 Shri Ashwini Kumar Sharma | 00157371 Director 5
|6, Shri Banmali Agrawala 00120029 Director 1
| 7. Shri Ashish Sharma 01659506 Director 6
Y Shri Ryan Armand Zanin 07316506 Director 5
P9 Shri V G Kannan 03443982 Ex-Director 3
Cessation
wef  30-07-
_ 2016
10. | Shr Narasimhachari 07409731 Ex-Director 2
Krishnamachari Cessation w.e.}
21-07-2016
11. Shri Percival Sam Billimoria | 01197535 Independent 1
e Director Al
12. | Shri Prashant Kumar 07562475 Ex-Director L
| Cessation w.e.[
e e 19001-2017 ——




COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of the 6 Audit Committee
meetings held in accordance with the applicable guidelines and rules, during the year

ending March 31, 2017 are as follows:

S. No. | Name of Directors/| Status No. of Meetings
Member Attended
1 Shri Neeraj Vyas Member wef 31-01-2017| 1
Chairman wefl 29-034
2017
2 Smt Saraswathy| Member wel 12-09-2016| 3
Athmanatha
3 Shri Ashish Sharma Member 6
Shri Narasimhachari Ex-Member 2
Krishnamachari w.e.f21-07-2016
5 Shri Prashant Kumar Ex-Member 2
w.e.f 19-01-2017

The Audit Committee met on 27-04-2016, 04-07-2016, 28-07-2016, 01-11-2016, 31-
01-2017, 29-03-2017.

Shri Ashish Sharma resigned from the directorship of the company with effect from the
conclusion of the Board Meeting held on August 09, 2017 consequently vacancy was
created in Audit Committee as well. Shri Vishal Gulati (DIN 07564924} was appointed
as the nominee Director and member of Audit Committee with effect from conclusion of
the Board Meeting held on August 09, 2017,

COMPOSITION OF RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The composition of the Risk Management Committee and the details of the 4 Risk
Management Committee meetings held, in accordance with the applicable guidelines and
rules, during the year ending March 31, 2017 are as [ollows:

S.No. [Name of  Directors/| Status No. of Meetings
Membher Attended
1 Shri Neeraj Vyas Member wef 31-01-2017| -
2 Smt Saraswathyl Member wef 12-09-2016{ 2
Athmanatha
& Shri Ashish Sharma Member 4
Shri Narasimhachari Ex-Member
Krishnamachari w.e.f21-07-2016
5 Shr Prashant Kumar Ex-Member 2
w.e.f19-01-2017

The Risk Management Committee met on 27-04-2016, 28-07-2016,01-11-2016, 31-01-

2017,

Shri Ashish Sharma resigned from the directorship of the company with effect from the
conclusion of the Board Meeting held on August 09, 2017 consequently vacancy was
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created in Risk Management Committee as well. Shri Vishal Gulati (DIN 07564924) was
appointed as the nominee Director and member of Risk Management Committee with
effect from conclusion of the Board Meeting held on August 09, 2017.

COMPOSITION OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of the

4 NRC meetings held, in accordance with the applicable guidelines and rules, during the
year ending March 31, 2017 are as follows:

S. No. | Name of  Directors/| Status No. of Meetings
Member Attended
1 Shri Neeraj Vyas Member wef 31-01-2017| -
2 Smt Saraswathyl Member wef 12-09-2016/ 2
Athmanatha
Shri Ashish Sharma Member
Shri Narasimhbachari Ex-Member w.e.f 21-07-| 2
Krishnamacharn 2016
5] Shri Prashant Kumar Ex-Member w.e.f 19-01-} 1
2017

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on 27-04-2016, 04-07-2016, 01-11-
2016, 31-01-2017.

The NRC has been reconstituted with effect from 07-04-2017 with following members:
1. Shri Dinesh Kumar Khara

2. Shri Ashwini Kumar Sharma
3. Shri Ashish Sharma

{nominee Director SBI)
{nominee Director SBI)
{nominee Director GE Capital)

Shri Ashish Sharma resigned [rom the directorship of the company with effect from the
conclusion of the Board Meeting held on August 09, 2017 consequently vacancy has
been created in Nomination and Remuneration Committee as well.

COMPOSITION OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board
of Directors of the Company and the details of the 3 CSR Committee meetings held, in
accordance with the applicable guidelines and rules, during the year ending March 31,
2017 are as follows:

S. No. | Name  of  Directors/| Status No. of Meetings
Member Attended

1 Shri Neeraj Vyas Member wef 31-01-2017] -

2 Smt Saraswathy] Member wef 12-09-2016| 1
Athmanatha

3 Shri Ashish Sharma Member | 3

9
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4 Shri Narasimhachari Ex-Member w.e.f21-07-| 1
Krishnamachari 2016

S Shri Prashant Kumar Ex-Member w.e.f 19-01-§ 1
2017

The CSR Committee met on 27-04-2016, 28-07-2016, 31-01-2017.

Shri Ashish Sharma resigned from the directorship of the company with effect from the
conclusion of the Board Meeting held on August 09, 2017 consequently vacancy was
created in CSR Committee as well. Shri Vishal Gulati (DIN 07564924} was appointed as
the nominee Director and member of CSR Committee with effect from conclusion of the
Board Meeting held on August 09, 2017,

The terms of reference of CSR Committee include the following:

a. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the
activities to be undertaken by the Company as per the Companies Act, 2013;

b. To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the
activities to be undertaken by the company;

c. To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time;

d. Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of
the Board of Directors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time
to time.

The CSR Policy along with the details of CSR activities during the year as per
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy Rules, 2014 has been appended herewith
as Annexure 3.

VIGIL MECHANISM

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
established a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees to provide a mechanism
which provides adequate safeguards to employees and Directors from any victimization
on raising of concerns of any unethical practice/non-compliance/ irregularity cbserved.
The Policy on the Vigil Mechanism of the Company is displayed on the Website of the
Company.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Company follows the fit and proper criteria as laid down by RBI Directions and the
Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company {ramed under Section 178(2) & (3)
of The Companies Act, 2013 & RBI Circular no. 2014-15/552 DNBR
(PD)CC.N0O.029/03.10.001/2014-15 April 10, 2013 for appointment of Directors.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board recommends for appointment
of a Director based on the fit and proper criteria Policy and Nomination & Remuneration
Policy of the Company further the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
responsible to ensure 'fit and proper status of proposed/ existing directors. The
Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company is annexed as Annexure 4

Pecuniary transactions of Directors with the Company during the financial year 2016-17
are as under:
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Sitting Fee at the rate of Rs. 15,000 per Board Meeting and Rs. 10,000 per Committee
Meeting is paid to Shri Ashwini Kumar Sharma, Smt Saraswathy Athmanathan and Shri
Percival Sam Billimoria for the meetings attended by them during the FY 2016-17.

Closing Balance as on March 31, 2017 of the credit cards issued to Directors of the
Company is Rs. 11,94,859/-

AUDITORS & COMMENTS ON AUDITORS REPORT

During the year under review, the office of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
(hereinafter referred to as “CAG") exercising the power conferred under section 139 of
the Companies Act, 2013, appointed M/s. Gandhi Minocha & CO., Chartered
Accountants (Registration No. 000458N), as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for
the financial year 2016-17. Supplementary Audit of the Company was conducted by
Principal Director of Commercial Audits on behalf of CAG in accordance with Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse
remarks or disclaimers made by Statutory Auditor and CAG in their reports.

The Statutory Auditors’ report and CAG Audit Report are self-explanatory in nature and
does not require any comments from Directors of the Company.

Further, the Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2016-17 are being appointed by
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India on such terms and conditions as CAG may
prescribe,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

While the business activity of the Company does not result in any material consumption
of energy, still the Company is commitied to continue its efforts towards the
conservation of energy. Energy conservation and technology updates are a part of the
ongoing processes in your Company. The efforts made towards technology update have
been detailed in this Report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During Financial Year 2016-17, the Company incurred foreign currency expense of an
amount of Rs. 986,437,462/~ on network, other service charges and other expenses
{2015-16: Rs. 770,254,744/-.

The dividend remitted during the year 2016-17 in foreign currency was Rs. 314,000,000
(2013-16: Rs. 314,000,000).

The foreign exchange earnings during the year 2016-17 were Rs. 1,041,003,974/-
(2015-16: Rs. 529,347,672/-).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Your Company has a strong and committed corporate governance [ramework, which
encompasses policies, processes and people, by directing, controlling and managing

activities with objectivity, transparency and integrity.



Your Company is committed to ensure fair and ethical business practices, transparent
disclosures and reporting. The focus of the Company is on statutory compliance,
regulations and guidelines and ethical conduct of business throughout the organization
with primary objective of enhancing stakeholder’s value while being a responsible
corporate citizen.

CREDIT RATING

The credit ratings of the company as at the end of 31 March, 2017 are as below:

Instrument Rating Rating Comments
Agency
This is highest level of
Debentures/Bonds  AAA/Stable CI?ESR&& ratings and

Instruments with this
rating are considered to
have very strong degree

Short Term of safety regarding
Ratings(Bank Al+ CRISIL & timely payment of
Lines/Commercial ICRA financial obligations.
Paper)

Such instruments carry
lowest credit risk.

AWARDS

» SBI Card has qualified as an organization built on high-trust, high-performance
culture and has been certified as Great Warkplace by Great place to work Institute,
India. SBI Card was chosen amongst 600+ organisation pan India

~ 5Bl Card has been adjudged as the 14th best ‘Dream Company to work for’ by
World HRD Congress, in association with Times Ascent. A ranking of top-75
companies was made post a jury evaluation

# In above Congress, SBI Card also won award in the following categories for Best
Workplace practices, For managing health at work and Best in employee engagement

~ CEO of SBI Card won ‘CEO with HR orientation’ which recognizes the fact that
under his leadership, the organization has succeeded in creating noteworthy
benchmarks in human resource practices and employee relationships, thereby
making SBI Card the No. 2 credit card company in India

~ SBI Card has been acknowliedged by LinkedIn for highest increase in “Talent Brand
Index”

» SBI Card awarded Most Trusted Brand by Reader's Digest Trusted Brand Awards
2016

» 8Bl Card's Corporate card team has been awarded with the “number One
commercial card issuer” award by VISA



~ Fraud Control Team was awarded with “Champion Security Award” for the South
Asia region for the lowest fraud to sales ratio and strong risk management process.

# At the global Compliance Register Platinum Award ceremony in London, SBI Card
won the award for ‘Compliance Excellence’ and bagged the Runner Up award in
‘Best Head of Regulatory Compliance’ category

» The compliance team of SBI Card was also awarded ‘Excellent Compliance
Performer-2016’ across Indian industries at the Annual Compliance 10/ 10 awards

SBI Card also won ‘Compliance Team of the Year-Overseas' award at GRCI Annual
Awards 2016 across Australasia

Y

» SBI Card legal team has been awarded the ‘Best In-House Legal Team of the Year
(Mid-Size)’ at the Indian Legal Awards organized by Legal Era Magazine

v

SBI Card was awarded for Best Loyalty Program in Financial Sector: Non-
Banking, during The Customer FEST Show at the 10th edition of Loyalty Summit

» SBI Card awarded with the “Best Data Quality” award in NBFC category for the
second time in a row, at annual CIBIL conference.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has adopted the policies, processes and strueture for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business with adequate and effective internal financial
control across the organization, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial disclosures.

Also, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size of the
company and has appointed Emst & Young for conducting periodic audits of the
internal functions and processes of the company. During the year under review, no
material or serious observation has been received from the Internal Auditors of the
Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

No orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have impact
on the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

RISK MANAGEMENT AT SBI CARDS

Your company has in place a robust and comprehensive Risk Management framework
enumerating risk based decision making and risk management processes encompassing
existing risks, new risks that may have arisen, the likelihood and impact of risks &
reporting significant changes adjusting to the risk priorities. In addition, the overall risk
management process is subjected to periodic review to deliver assurance that it remains
appropriate and effective, aligned with the emerging risks. Risk management program
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involves risk identification, assessment and risk mitigation planning for financial, credit,
strategic, operational, liquidity, legal, reputation, contagion, concentration, model and
regulatory related risks across various levels of the organization. The company has a
Board approved Risk Management Policy and Risk Appetite Statement and triggers and
the same is reviewed annually by the Board of Directors. The triggers laid out in the
Risk Appetite are reviewed monthly and are also reported to the Board in case of any
trigger breaches.

FRAUD REPORTING

Certain instances of customer frauds on the Company, primarily relating to fraudulent
usage of credit cards issued by the Company, have been reported during the FY 2016-
17. The total amount involved in these frauds was Rs, 49,461,633/-.

PARTICULARS OF EMFPLOYEES

Your Directors would like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the
cantributions made by employees of your Company at all levels. The information
required under the provisions of Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given as annexure 5 of this Report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined in the Non-
Banking Financial Companies {Reserve Bank of India) Directions, as amended to date.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Sec 134 (3) C of the Companies Act, 2013 your Directors state that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017,
the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(d} the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(c) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.



DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declaration from Independent Director that he
meets the criteria of independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Companies Act
2013.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is appended as Annexure 6 to this Report.

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013

Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and subsequent notification of rules in this regard, the
Company has adaopted the Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace.

Intermal Complaint Committee formed under the Provisions of the Act as on March 31,
2017 comprises of Nandini Malhotra (Presiding Officer), Girish Budhiraja, Ritu Saxena,
Siddhartha Dasgupta (Mumbai), K Padmanabh, Srariti Bijlani, Shephali Birdi, Raavi
Birbal (External Member) as the members of the Committee.

During the calendar year 2016, no case was reported under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal} Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Directors wish to thank the Reserve Bank of India, Company's Bankers,

customers, shareholders, employees and collaborators for their valuable assistance,
support and co-operation.

Date: R -0%-20\F For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Nl
—
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CHAIRMAN

DIN: 02011213
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The financizal results for the year ended March 31, 2017 and the previous year

are as under:
In Rs. Crores

S. |Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

‘No
1 Income 3363.49 2491.78
2 | Finance Cost 521.58 430.32
5} Operating & Other Expenses 1786.98 1270.75
4 | Depreciation and Amortization 1.04 0.84
5 Profit /(Loss) Before Tax 598.46 438.18
6 Tax 208.05 154.28
7 | Profit /{Loss) After Tax 390.41 283.9

APPROPRIATIONS

In this fiscal, the company has achieved net profit of Rs. 390 Cr @ a growth
rate of 37% vs previous year. In view of the commendable financial performance
of the company, your company has paid interim dividend of Rs. 1 per equity
share (10%]) in this fiscal and have appropriated the profit as follows:

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
|Deficit)/Surplus in the Statement 122 (10)
of P&L
Profit/{Loss) for the year 390 284
Transfer to Statutory Reserve {78) (37)

Transfer to General Reserve - =
Transfer to Capital Reserve =
Interim Dividend (79) {79)

Tax on Dividend (16) (16)
Balance carried over to Balance 340 122
Sheet

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

In FY'16-17, your company has generated Profit after Tax of Rs. 390.4 Cr as
against Rs 2839 Cr in FY 15-16 at YOY growth of 37%.

Acquisition of new accounts has grown YOY by 50% leading to 28% growth in
our cards base to 4.6 MM as compared to 3.6 MM. Our portiolio spends has
shown an YOY increase of 51% to close at Rs. 43,436 Cr. The growth rates in
bothh spends and cards have been phenomenal and compares favourably



against industry growth rates of 22% and 36% in cards and spends
respectively. The impressive growth rate has enabled the company to achieve
2nd position in both spends and cards category.

Growth in Cards and Spends have enabled ocur Receivables to clock an increase
of 39% YOY. The company is closed monitoring it's pre and post acquisition
quality. The portfolio growth is taking place without compromising on portfolio
quality. Gross NPA level for FY'16-17 has shown a downward trend to close at
1.6% as compared to 2.0% previous year.

Your company continuously reviews it's existing product suite and explores
opportunities in the market for new tie-ups and new product launches to offer
best value proposition to customers. We have launched seven new products
during the current financial year. We refreshed our exiting Signature Card and
introduced “Elite” Card with enhanced features to cardholders. An exclusive
variant of Elite Card was launched for SBI-Xclusive wealth management
customers. The company launched its 2 cobrand card with Future Group
namely SBl Central Card. We launched two other cobranded cards with
Kamataka Banl and Chennai Metro. In order to target the youth, we launched
SBI Students Plus Card for students in colleges and premier institutes.

As an initiative towards enabling digital India, We have also introduced a new
“SBI Unnati Card” to focus exclusively to SBI customers.

On the digital front, your company has progressed phenomenally by ramping
up its digital presence in web and mobile space.

SBI Card website receives #14 MM visitors per month with 9.4 MM unique
visitors. Close to half our cross sell sales take place through our website. We
have also added additional following features on our website:

o Online KYC document submission for renewal of KYC through website
o Add-on Plus where customer can set the new mobile number for Add on
card related notification and select a different credit limit for the Add-on

Card

o CLick2Buy functionality for Encash and Flexipay where customer can
login through the OTP through SMS to book Encash or Flexipay on
website

o Career Website Integration with SBI Card website

o Add-on KYC to collect the KYC documents of the Add ON Card holder to
ensure a complete digital process

o MySBIWorld on oniinesbi.com, this project enable the linkage of SBI
Card post login section with Online SBI post login section so the
customers can view their SBI credit card information on the Online SBI
itself

o Webform functionality for complaint management

Our SBI Card mobile application has 3 MM+ logins per month, We have added
new functionalities to the application this year namely, online rewards



e

—

redemption, Estore buy integration with Goibibo and cross sell booking
functionality.

We have enhanced our presence of social media platforms with 9 lac+ foilowers
in facebook and 1.5 lacs+ fans in twitter. During the year we introduced our
presence on Instagram too to cater to Travel & Fashion customer segments.

PROSPECTS

SBI Cards envisions making life simple for our cardholders by offering a
superior customer experience, enhanced value proposition above competition
and world class products to serve our customers. In the current financial year,
Your Company has reached to 2% positdon both in terms of no. of Cards as well
as spends on Cards. We have also introduced new products and enhaneed our
service levels.

The company is focussed on growing our portfolio in a profitable manner and
keeping a close watch on the portfolio health, SBI Card will concentrate on
increasing its market share in cards and spends to achieve a superlative market
position in the industry.

With this objective in mind, we have launched “Project Shikhar”. One of the
primary objective of this project is to ramp up sourcing from SBI customer
base. We have already launched a product “Unnati” and are in the process of
launching more products for this segments. We are also reviewing our internal
processes/policies to enable faster turnaround and superior customer
experience. For open market sourcing, we will explore ncw distribution
channels and expand our footprint to ramp up sourcing. We will also continue
to explore new Co-brand tie-ups to expand our coverage in areas of Retail,
lifestyle, e-com and hospitality. This may require additional investments in the
short run but will pay dividends in the long run with respect to profitability and
industry position.

We have grown our commercial card base phenomenally this year and shall
continue to focus on this segment as well to grow our portiolio. We shall focus
on large and medium corporates for stable and profitable growth and shall
continue to add value to our customers through premium service experience.
The recent changes in KYC regime by allowing customers to complete through
e-kyc using Aadhar biometrics offers simplification in customer acquisition
process. We initiated a project this year to obtain KYC through Aadhar this
year. We plan to leverage this facility to greater volumes next year to simplify
OUr Processes.

We remain committed to maximise value all our stakeholders, internal and
external, including our customers, employees, shareholders and business
partners. The business and financial performance of the company has been
improving year on year. Our strong customer base, robust processes and
internal control along with strong parentage and patronage of State Bank of
India provides us a platform to reach greater heights in times to come.



MACRO ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The outlook for growth in FY 7017-18 remains positive, as indicated by the
Reserve Bank of India in the Sixth Bi-Monthly Policy Statement. As per the
latest estimates released by the CSO, the country’s GDP growth is estimated at
7.1 per cent for FY 7016-17. Post demonetisation, growth is expected to bounce
back and likely to boost consumption demand in the next fiscal. RBl has
pegged the likely growth rate in FY 2017-18 at 7.4%.

One of the most significant event effecting the Indian Economy in FY 2016-17
was Demonetisation announced on November 2016. The basic objectives of the
exercise was aimed at addressing black money, counterfeit currency and terror
financing. In the backdrop of demonetisation, the Government of India gave a
push towards transforming India into a cash less economy providing a boost to
the long terms prospects of the payment industry. This has led to a favourable
environment with respect to acceptability of cards and other payment
instruments in the country.

The 3 factors which will drive the growth of digital payments in India are
digitally evolved consumers, concerted efforts of Government & RB! and well
equipped players. Estimates suggest that e-commerce market could grow by
40% annually for the next five years. Active support from the government for
cashless economy, growth of e-commerce and change in acceptance of credit
cards amongst consumers is expected to lead generate a huge opportunity for
credit card sector.

[ntroduction of GST in July2017 is going to be another event with significant
implications. A simplified and robust tax system is expected to improve
business sentiments leading to higher investments and growth.

INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENTS

As per the RBI Industry reports, number of credit cards in circulation in India
stands at 29.8 Mn as on Mar 2017 growing by 22% YOY. Retail spends on
credit cards for FY 2016-17 stands at Rs. 3,281 Bn showing a growth of 36%
YOY. No of POS terminals have also grown by 83% from 1.38 Mn to 2.52 in the
current financial year providing a much needed thrust to Indian payment
industry.

Your company has grown significantly above industry averages in both spends
and cards categories. The company has a total card base of 4.6 Mn as on Mar
7017 which is 26% higher than previous year. The company has improved its
market ‘ranking from 3¢ to 2= position in terms of card base with 15.3%
market share {14.8% previous year}.

Relail spends on our cards for FY n016-17 was at Rs. 43Bn which has grown
by impressive 51% YOY. The company leaped Lo 2= position in terms of spends
from 4t position with market share of 13.2% (11.9% previous year)




OPPORTUNITIES

Credit card spends as a percentage of Personal Consumption Expenditure in
India stands stands @ 3.7% for FY'16-17 which makes it one of the least
penetrated markets globally. This represents a huge potential to increase credit
card penetration in India.

The recent Demonetisation exercise by the Govt. of India has created a
favourable environment for payment companies including credit card
companies. Post demonetisation awareness & acceptance of credit cards have
increased amongst consumers leading to increase in new account sourcing and
increase in spends.

THREATS

Along with opportunities, post demonetisation has also brought in new
challenges to the sector. Due to lack of infrastructure in rural areas, it will
always be a major obstacle for growth of card industry in India. Further,
government has recently launched new payment system, Unified Payment
Initerface (UP}) and is also contemplating to leverage Aadhar database of UIDAI
to launch biometric based payment systems. The impact of these initiatives on
credit cards is uncertain and the company will need to keep a close watch to
analyse and take actions as and when required.

The company will also have to keep a close watch on the newly launched
Payment Banks. Though currently, these Banks are not allowed to launch
credit products, these banks may cause potential competition through their
enhanced distribution network and potential tie-ups with full service banks to
offer credit facilities.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Cybersecurity has become a leading concern to the fnancial sector with
increase in incidents of data thefts and cyber frauds. The company accords
highest priority in keeping our networks and IT infrastructure safe and robust
in preventing such incidents. We are evaluating insurance cover to protect
against potential loss arising out of cyber frauds.

New Payment Technologies

The company has been making rapid strides to adopt and implement new
technologies. SBI cards has been one of the earliest issuers to launch contact
less cards in the industry with 3 of our products on contactless technaology
contnbuting 25% of our total new acquisitions.

The payments ecosystem is fast evolving and changing rapidly over last few
years with introduction of new payment systems in the form of Bharat OR,
mobile payment applications etc. Bharat QR payment system will allow
merchants to receive digital payments without the use Point-of-Sale {POS)
machines. This is expected to simplify digital payments and enable more people
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to move to the cashless payment methods. Visa has also launched M-visa, its
new transformative way to pay & accept payment using smartphones. These
technological developments are expected to lead to growth in this sector. The
advent of mobile technology in the payment space has introduced opportunities
to migrate plastic cards to virtual cards in mobile handsets.

Your company is well placed to embrace the changing technologies and has
launched its first product in association with Samsung Pay using HCE
technology. SBI Card became the second issuer in the country to launch
Signature contactless credit card which was followed by launch of contactless
FBB SBI StyleUP. We have planned to go-live with m-visa during FY'17-18.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

Company has in place a robust & comprehensive Risk Management framework
enumerating risk based decision making and risk management processes
encompassing existing risks, new risks that may have arisen, the likelihood and
impact of risks & reporting significant changes adjusting to the risk priorities.
In addition, the overall risk management process is subjected to periodic review
to deliver assurance that it remains appropriate and effective, aligned with the
emerging risks. Risk management program involves risk identification,
assessment and risk mitigation planning for financial, credit, strategic,
operational, liquidity, legal, reputation, contagion, concentration, model and
regulatory related risks across various levels of the organization. The company
has a Board approved Risk Appetite Statement and triggers and the same is
reviewed annually by the Board of Directors. The triggers laid out in the Risk
Appetite are reviewed monthly and also reported to the Board in case of any
trigger breaches.

The intemal audit process is synchronized with the Risk Management
Framework of the company. The company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size of the company and had appointed Ernst & Young
for conducting periodic audits of the intermal functions and processes of the
company for the year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your company has revamped employee benefits structure which focuses on
enhancing employee advantages and experience. 540 people were employed in
the Company as on 31-03-2017.

A new Insurance Benelfits policy for the new financial year has been designed
offering more value for our employees.

Comprehensive program focusing on employee health and wellness has been
introduced as ‘Embracing Wellness' for all our locations which would replace
our current program ‘Health Ahead’.

In our endcavour to drive a strong Reward & Recognition culture at 8Bl Card,
we revamped our R&R programs and branded as “Wings". With this program,



our aim is to promote a healthy culture of recognition across the organization,
at the same time keeping it simple and instant so as to make it an enriching
experience for our employees. Keeping this in mind the new R&R structure has
been thoughtfully curated, adapting to the best in class industry practices.
Some of the key highlights of the new R&R structure are as follows:

v Comprehensive program covering multiple recognition segments like
(long association, performance, culture, team spirit, innovation and
leadership)

v Supported by an automated R&R platform and mobile application which
covers the complete recognition lifecycle.

v Enhances the employee social engagement through interactive
recognition wall which offers features like comment, clap and applaud
v Offers exciting reward options to employees like international/domestic

travel, adventure/dining experiences, products and gift vouchers

For the first time wunder our learning and development initiative
“Lead@work” created curriculum to address the leaming needs for the
employees. We have also partnered with Global institutes for senior leadership
interventions.

Date: O9-08- D1 F For and on behalf of the Board
Place: ™Maarnypl
R
A g_,,_p_n_n_c-a.ﬂ-..nwa')’-.
CHAIRMAN

DIN: 02011213
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Related Party Transaction Policy

1. Preamble

SBI Cards and Payment Services Privata Limited (the “Company”) has formulated this poticy
on Related Party Transactions in line with the requirements of Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”), including the rules made thereunder and the RBI Circular no. RBI/2014-
15/299 DNBR {PD} CC.N0.002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated November 18, 2014,

Such transactions are appropriate only if they are in the best interest of the Company and
its shareholders. The Company is required to disclose each year in the Financial Statements
transactions between the Company and Related Parties. The related party transactions
falling under the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Act are required to be disclosed in the
Boards' Report along with the justification for entering into such transactions. In terms of
the aforesald RBI Circular the Company is required to disclose the details of all material
transactions with related parties in the Boards’ Report and is also required to disclose the
policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions on its website and in its Boards’ Report.

2. Objective

The objective of this policy is to regulate transactions between the Company and its related
parties based on the laws and regulations applicable on the Company. All Related Party
Transactions, as that term is defined in this policy, shall be subject to review
[approval/ratification in accordance with the procedures set forth below in arder to ensure
the transparsncy and procedural fairness of such transactions. Section 188 requires a
company to obtain appraval of the Board and of the members, in certain situations, prior to
entering of any transaction or agreement with a related party.

3. Definitiong
a. "Arm's length transaction” means a transaction between two related parties that is
conducted as if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest or vested
interest in that transaction.

b, “Ordirary Course of business”

Related Party Transactions that are part of regular operative activities, and connected
financial activities, of any organization in similar business and size shall be considered to
be in the ordinary course of business operations.

Following are some of the criteria that may be considered for determining whether the
transaction is in the ordinary course of business:

I.  Nature: Whether the scope of the transaction is generally consistent with the

Company's business activities and whether the Company enters into, or can
enter into, similar transactions with a third party;
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Frequency: Whether the transaction is of a nature regularly carried out by the
Company, is an important indication that classifies the transaction to be withia
the Company's ordinary course of business operations;
Size of transaction: Whether the transaction value is within the reasonable range
for similar types of other transactions. An exceptionally large value transaction
should invite closer scrutiny.
These are not exhaustive criteria and the Company will assess each transaction
considering its specific nature and circumstances.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
*Tha Company" means 5Bl Cards and Payment Services Private Limited

“Control” shall include the right to appoint majority of the directors or to control the
management or policy decisions exercisable by a person or persons acting
individually or in concert, directly or indirectly, including by virtue of their

sharzsholding or management rights or shareholders agreements or voting
agraemants or in any other manner; ’

“Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Company.
*Key Managerial Personngl {"KM P*)* means key managerial personnel as defined
under the Companies Act, 2013 and includes the following, if applicable;

a) the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
b} the Company Secretary;

c) the Whole-time Diractor;

d} the Chief Financial Officer; and

e} Such other officer as may be prescribed under the Act.

“pssoclate Company”, means any company in which the Company controls at least
twenty per cent of total share capital or of business decision under an agreement,
but which is not a subsidiary of the Company but includes a loint Vanture Company.

“Material Related Party Transaction” means a transaction with a related party if the
transaction / transactions to be entered into individually or taken together with
previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds ten percent of the annual
consolidated turnover as per the last audited financial statements of the company.

“Policy” means Related Party Transaction Palicy.

“Related Party” shall have the same meaning as assigned to in the Companies Act
2013, as amendad from time to time.

“pelated Party Transaction” means any transaction directly or indiractly involving

any Related Party whichis a transfer of resources, services or obligations batween a
company and a related party, regardiess of whether 3 price is charged. A
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“transaction” with a related party shail be construed to include single transaction or
a group of transactions in a contract,

m. “Relatives” mean such person as defined in Section 2(77) of the Companies Act 2013,
as amanded from time to time.

As per Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of Companies [spacification
of definitions details} Rutes, 2014 following are covered under definition of relatives:

1) Members of HUF

2) Spousa

3) Ffather {includes step-father).

4) Mother (includes the step-mother).
5) Son (includes the step-san).

6) Son's wife

7) Daughter

8) Daughter’s hushand

9} Brother {includes the step-brother}.
10) Sister (includes the step-sister).

4. ldentification of Related Parties and Process for_entering Into a Related Party

Transaction

The following process shall be followed to ensure all related parties are identified in order to
obtain the requisite approvals for any transactions with such related parties:

1) Every director shall at the first meeting of the Board in which he participates as 2
director and thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year or
whenever there Is any change in the disclosures already made, then at the first
Board meeting held after such change, disclose his toncern or interest in any
company or companies or bodies corporate, firms, or other association of
individuals, including his shareholding, shall furnish Form MBP-1 “Notice of Interest
by Director” pursuant to Section 1821} and Rule 9 of the Companies {Meeting of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,

2) Every Director shall alsa furnish declaration in relation to their relatives, their

relatives’ partnership in firms, interest/shareholding/directorsh'rps in private
companies and public companies.

3) Declaration by KMPs of the Company regarding relatives and entities over which
they are able to exercise significant influence etc,

4) Declaration by the Director and Manager whether the Board of Diractors, managing
director or manager of any other body corporate is accustorned to act in atcordance
with his/her advice, directions ar instructions (given otherwise than in a professional
capacity)

SBI CARDS AMD FAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
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5) Declaration by directors and manager of Company whether they are accustomead to
act in accordance with the advice, directions or instruction of any person {given
otherwise than in a professional capacity) and if yes particular of such personsis).

5) Declaration by the CFO whether any company is a holding, subsidiary or an associate
company {including a joint venture company) of the company or a fellow subsidiary
company, If yes, particuiars of relevant companies to be provided.

7} Declaration by Company Secretary regarding any individual owning, directly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives such individual
control or significant influence over the Company.

The Company strongly prefars to recaive such declarations/ notice of any potential Related
Party Transaction well in advance so that the Board has adequate time to obtain and review
information about the proposed transaction. The above declarations shall be collated and
maintained by the Company Secretary. Further, the declarations so collated shall be
revisited on a quarterly basis to add, remove and modify the name of the identified related
party.

On the basis of declaration received as detailed ahove, Corporate Secretarial Department
shall maintain a database of Company's Related Parties. The Related Party List shall be
updated whenever necessary and shall be reviewed at least once a year, as on 1st April
every year and share the same with the senior management team of the Company.

The process for entering into a Related Party Transaction will ba as set out below:
Transactions with Related Parties shall generally be in the form of master agreements which
would define the terms governing individual transactions / work orders / purchase orders

(Sub-transactions) to be undertaken under the agreement.

The Company will:

o]

identify the transactions with Related Parties;

b. perform tests to determine whether the transaction is in the ordinary course of
business operations ar otherwise;

c. review the commercials terms involved in the transaction and analyze whether the
transaction is at ‘arm’s |length’ as if the party is unrelated;

d. determine the approval requirements applicable to the transaction in accordance
with this Palicy and applicable laws ;

e. prepare and maintain relevant documentation supporting the basis of its
assessment;

f. present the required datails to the Audit Committee/Board or Shareholdars for
approvals as required; and

E. execute agreement once the approvals are obtained.

L
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In connection with its review of a Related Party Transaction, the Company wilt take into
account, among other factors it deems appropriate, whether the Related Party
Transaction is on terms no less favorable than terms generally available to an
unaffiliated third-party under the same or similar circumstances and the extent of the
Related Party's interast in the Related Party Transaction. Company shall inter alia refer
to the transfer pricing provisions under Income Tax Act or OECD Transfer Pricing

Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and Tax Administration for determining the
arms’ length criteria.

Company shall also consider, whether the Related Party Transaction would present a
conflict of interest with respect to any director or KMP of the Company, taking into
account the size of the transaction, the overall financial position of the director/KMP or
other Related Party, the direct or indirect nature of the director's, KMP's or other
Related Party's interest in the transaction and the ongoing nature of any proposed
relationship and any other factors deems relevant

5. _Approval of the Audit Committes

In accordance with the saction 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, all related party
transactions will require approval of the Audit Committee even if the transaction is in

the ardinary course of business and at arm’s length price. (RBI/2015-16/12 DNBR ({PD)
CC.No.053/03.10.118/2015-16 dated 01-07-2015)

Audit Committee may also grant omnibus approval for related party transaction

proposed to be entered into by the Company subject to fulfillment of the fallowing
conditions:

a. The Audit Committee may approve related party transactions under omnibus route
subject to fulfilment of the criteria laid in the Rule 6A of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules 2015 read with Section 177(4) of the Companies Act, 2013
and such other criteria as the Committee may deem fit.

b. The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the need for such omnibus approval for
transactions for repetitive nature and that such approval is in the interest of the
Company,

¢. transactions put up for omnibus approval shall specify/disclose (i) the name/s of the
related party, nature of transaction, period of transaction, maximum valua of
transaction that can b2 entered into, aggregate value of such transactions, {ii) the
indicative base price / current contracted price and the formula for variation in the price
if any and {iii) such other information as the Audit Committee may deem fit;

Provided that whare the need for related party transaction cannot be foraseen and
aforasaid details are not available, Audit Committee may grant amnibus apgproval for
such transactions subject to their vatua not exceeding Rs.1 Crore per transaction,

a
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d. Such omnibus approval shall be valid for a period not excesding ona year and shalt
require fresh approvals aftar the expiry of one year.

e. omnibus approval shall not be made for transactions in respect of selling or disposing
of the undertaking of the Company.

el. Any other conditions as the Audit Committee may deem fit.

f. Audit Committee shall review on periodic basis, the details of related party transaction
entered into by tha Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval given.

6. Approval of Board

Subject to the exemptions as prescribed under Section 188 (1) of the Act related party
transactions which are requirad ta be approved by the Baard of the Company under the

provisions of the Act shall be entered into and acted upon, only after such approval is
accorded by the Board.

Any directar of the Company who is concerned or interested in a contract or
arrangement, shall in terms of the provisions of the Act, disclose the nature of his

concern ar interest at the meeting of the Board in which the contract or arrangement Is
discussed.

The Chief Compliance Officer shall certify on quarterly basis to the Board of Directors on
the due compliance of laws on related party transactions of the Company.

Management shall present to the Board the following information, to the extent
relevant, with respect to the Related Party Transactions for their approval:

1) the name of the related party and nature of relationship;

2} the nature, duration of the contract and particulars of the contract or arrangement;

3) the material terms of the contract or arrangement including the value, if any;

4} any advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, if any;

5) justification for entering into such contract arrangement or transaction;

8} the manner of determining the pricing and other commercial terms, both included as
part of contract and not considered as part of the contract;

7} whether all factars relevant to the contract have been considered, if not, the details
of factors not considerad with the rationale for not considering those factors; and

8} any ather information relevant or important for the Board to take a decision on the
proposed transaction

7. Transactions with related parties reguiring shareholders approvals

a. Subject to the exemptions as prascribed under the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company shall take necessary approvals from the shareholdars while entering into

SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
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the related party transactions in case the value of the transactions exceeds the limits
as prascribed under the pravisions of the Act.

b. The related party in the context to the contract or arrangement, shall abstain from
voting on such resolution wherever the approval of the shareholders are required,

8. Exermnption from approval

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following transactions shall not require approval of
Board or Shareholders:

1) Any transaction that involves the providing of reimbursements or advances to a
director or KMP to meet expenditure in the course of his or her duties as such
Director or KMP of the Company;

2) Any remuneration paid to a directer or KMP as per the policy of the Company and/or
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

3) Sitting fees paid to director(s) in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

9. Exceptions

In the event the Company becomes aware of a Related Party Transaction with a Related
Party that has not been approved under this Policy prior to its consummation, the matter
shall be reviewed by the Beard. The Board shall consider all of the relevant facts and
circurnstances regarding the Related Party Transaction, and shall evaluate all options

available to the Company, including ratification, revision or termination of the Related Party
Transaction. :

10. Amendment or modification in the policy

The Policy shall be reviewed annually or at earlier intervals, if necessary. Consequent upon
any changes in regulatory guidelines, such change shall be deemed to be a part of the policy
until the policy is reviewed and approved next time.

The Policy or Related Party Transactions shall be amended or modified with approval of
Audit Committee and Board.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Palicy, in case of any contradiction of the
provisian of this policy with any existing legistations, rules, regulations, laws or medification
therzof or enactment of 2 new applicable law, the provisions under such law, legislation,
rules, regulation or enactment shail prevail over this Policy

=51
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Annual Report on CSR activities {SBICPSL) for the year 2016-17

A brief outline of the company’s CSR Policy, including overview af projects or
programs-proposed-to-be-undertaken and-u reference-to-the-web-linl to the- CSR-
Palicy and profects or programs’

The company's mission is to be part of the initiatives that work for the overall
betterment of peaple of the nation, ensuring development across different strata of
saciety, geography and ability. We look to extend our guiding principles to bring
about impactful change that is sustainable and scalable.

Vision of the company is to empower the community through education, skills and
access to the quality health and sanitation facilities.

The organization has outlined the following key focused areas for CSR activities -

{ij Livelihood and Skill Enhancement (
il Education -
{iii} Sanitation and Health
iv] Contributions-to Government funds and Initlatives, like Prime Minister Relief
Fund, Clean Ganga Fund and Swachh Bharat Kosh
lv} Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition; promoting preventive health care
___& sapitation and making available safe drinklng water.
{vi) Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes & hostels for
women & orphans; setting up old-age homes, day care centres and such other

Mﬁmmmummymmhmﬁ_.
socially and economically backward groups.

The CSR Policy is available on SBI Card website www.shicard.com
The composition of the CSR Committee as on 31" March 2017:
Following are the members of SBICPSL CSR Committee :- £

a)  Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan
b}  Mr. Neeraj Vyas
c)  Mr. Ashish Sharma

Average net profit of the company for the lost three financial years

Average net profit of the company for the last three years is Rs. 351,94,89,051/- as
mentioned below :-

Financial Year Net Profit (INR)
2013-14 309,71,29,309
2014-15 291,54,86,227
2015-16 454,58,51,617

Total for the last 3 years 1055,84,67,153

Average 351,94,8%,051




—— _——

Prescribed CSR Expenditure

[2 (two) percent of the amount in item 3 above]

The prescribed CSR expenditure for FY 2016-

351,94,89,051)

Details of the CSR spent during the financial year :

a. Total amount ta be spent for the financial year : Rs. 7,03,89,782/-
b. Amount unspent, if any : NIL
C. Manner in which the amount is spent during the financial year :

17 was Rs. 7,03,89,782 (2% of Rs

5. | CSR Profect or activity | Sector In | Projects or | Amount Amount spent | Cummulative Amount spent
No. | identiflad which  the | programs outlay an the | expenditure | direct or
) project  Is | ) Local  area {budgat) projects /| upto tha | thraugh
covered or athar pralect  or | programs reparting Implementing
{)Speclfy the | program Subheads : perlod agency
state & | wise {) Direct
district expend|-
whara the ture on
project  ar projects orf
program programs
was INA {i) Ove INA
undertaken rheads

L |To Impart hands-on Promoting Delll , NCR, 128,45,480 128,45,480 2,96,27,315 Through
sclence educatlon | Education Mumbal, Implementing
program for ecanomically Bhopal, { FY15-16: Agency-
disadvantaged children & Bangalora, 16,781,836 & | Agastya
teachers of Govt. schoals, Patna, FY16-17: International
through Mobila Sclence tehradun, 12,845,480) foundatlon
Labs fon vans & blkes), Darbhanga,

Sclence  Centers  eote. Bhubaneshwar
across Indla

2. | Educating & empowering | Promoting Gurgaon 20,086,250 14,05,250 26,37,950 Through
underprivileged chlidran- | Education Implementing
School  support  and (FY 15-16: Agency-
Sponsoring 100 Girt child 12,31,700 & | Literacy Indla

FY 18- 17
14,06,250)

3. {To  provide  primary Promoting Gurgaon, Delhi | 151,68,558 63,72,3%0 85,399,140 Through
healtheare facilitles to the | Healthcare and Chennal Implementing
under-priviteged in : . (FY15-15: Agency- Smille
selacted areas, where the 22,26,750 | Foundation
healthcare facllitles ars FY18-17:
missing  /  negliglble; 63,72,380)
through Mobile Madical
Units

4 {To provide support for Old-age Delhi 48,00,000 24,00,000 24,00,000 | Through
stay and care of destitute, | homes Implementing
homelass elderly, Agency-Salnt

Rardlyal
Education and
Orphan
Welfare
Soclaty

5 |[To provide support to | tducatlon Delhi 20,72,118 20,72,118 20,72,118 Through
Gaovt. sthaol by setting up Implamenting
the computer lab and Agency-United
aquipment., Way Delhl




To provide support for | Health Gurgaon, 29,98,837 29,58,837 29,98,837 Through
mobile  primary  eye Manesar and Implementing
scragning van faor the Sohna Agency-
underprivileged Arunodaya
i = T— - . Charltable_
Trust
Supporting  the  skill | Skl NCR 2,28,73,532 2,28,73,532 | 2,28,73,532 | Through-
davelopment In | developmen NSDF-N3DC
underprivileged youth t
Supporting the mid-day | Health Vrindavan, 1,54,74,000 1,54,74,000 | 1,54,74,000 | Through
meals for govt. school Jalpur Implementing
Agency-  The
Akshay Patra
Foundation
Prime Minister Natlonal | Gavernmeant 39,47,175 39,47,175 | 4,12,11,651 | PM rellef fund
Aellef Fund appraved -
fund {FV16-17:
39,47,175)
(FY 15-16:
24,26,4476
&
{FY 14-15:
1,30,00,000) Cb
TOTAL 70,389,782

a. in case the compony Is unable to spend 2% of the average net profit for the previous

3 financial years or any part thereaof, the company shall pravide the reasons for not
spending the amount ;

The organization has spent the amount stipulated for the financial year 2016-17.

Lpraar sy e po

Pt T

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the Implementation ond

maonitaring of the C5R Policy Is In compliance with the C5R objectives and the Palicy of
, the company :

The crganization has followed the specified norms and procedures in identification
and contribution of funds, in accordance with the CSR objectivas and approved CSR

Palicy.
A DA S
Chief Executive Officer Chalrman Chairman

SBICPSL CSR Committee, SBICPSL SBICPSL
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1. Corporate Philosophy
Corporate Sacial Responsibility (CSR) is the continuing commitment by business to contribute to the
social and economic development while improving the quality of life of the local cammunity and society
at large. It Is a process wheraby companies integrate social, environmental and economic concerns with
their business and interaction with their stakeholders on a voluntary basis.

At 58| Card we have warked on shortlisting initiatives and creating a program, that allows us to give back
to the society and its lesser privileged citizens. The program that has been developed locks at impacting
the society at different levels- children, young adults, aduits and Senior Citizen. We have also kept a
focus on women as an underlying principle during decision making.

2. CSR Vision & Mission
The company’s mission is to be part of initiatives that work for the averall betterment of the people of
the nation, ensuring development across different strata of saciety, geography and ability. We look to
extend our guiding principles to bring about impactful change in the society. The vision of the company
is to empawer the community through education, skills and access to quality health and sanitation
facilities.

3. Design Principles
Every goad program needs well defined guiding principles that serve as directions to the working group.
These principles are important to have a focus in our approach, decision & implementation of prajects.

The principles as defined for our program are:

1. Alignment to national initiatives and Focus Areas

2. [nitiatives where the impact created can be measured and reported

3. |dentification of partners for implementation and areas with proven experience of impact and
change

4. Adjacency of the initiative to the business, it's competencies, capabilities and geographies of
operation,

The above principles are used to shortlist the areas of work and the projects. This would require the
organization to create competencies and capacity within the company, to implement, where
appropriate, the CSR programs.

4. Budget Outline
As per the new Companies Act 2013, each company is required to contribute 2 % of its annual profit
{average of last 3 years) for CSR activities. The value for the current year will be calculated in the
beginning of every financial year.

[ Policy Owner: nternal Audit | Poge 3 | Q
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5.

Role of the Board

The Board shall ensure that the company spends, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the
average net profit of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in
pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. Additionally it will;

a)
b)

c}

d)

6.

Formulate a CSR Committee

After taking into account the recommendations made by the Corporate Sacial Responsibility
Committee, approve the Corparate Social Responsibility Policy for the company and disclose the
contents of such Policy in its report and also place it on the company's website, if any, in such
manner as may be prescribed; and

Ensure that the activities as are included in Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the
company are undertaken by the company.

Disclose reasons for not spending such amount, In its report under clause (o) of sub - section (3)
of Section 134, of The Companies Act 2013.

The board shall approve the broad focus areas and the total budget amount for the financial
year,

Role of the CSR Committee

A Corporate Soclal Responsibility Committee shall have following terms of reference and shall inter-alia,
include the following:

a)

b)

<}
d)

7.

To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the Company as per the Companies Act, 2013;

Tao recommend to the board for approvat of the broad focus areas and the total budget amount
for the financial year.

To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time;

Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after appraval of the Board of
Directors ar as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Role of the CSR Core Working Group (CWG)

The CSR Core Working Group (CWG) will comprise the CEO, CFO and other members as may be
appointed. A member of the group will be identified as the primary person respansible for
monitoring CSR programs. Quorum of the Group shall be 3, CEO, Primary person responsible for
monitoring CSR programs and any one of the other members.

a. The CWG will present and take approval for broad focus areas of work and budgeted
amount planned for the financial year from the Board / CSR Committee at the beginning of
every financial year.

b. The CWG will design and develop CSR programs aligned to the organization's objectives and
focus areas as approved by the Board / CSR Committee.

I Policy Owner: Internal Audit | Pogs & |
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c. To formulate, review and approve the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the
activities to be undertaken by the company.

To review and approve the partners and agencies wha may be engaged for the purposes of
implementing the CSR programs and the amounts to be spent for each project. The
disbursements of the funds for CSR activities shall be done in accordance with the Financial
Belegation Paolicy of the Company.

d. The CWG will execute & monitor the projects, and prepare an overview document for every
praject that it undertakes including and not limited to activity definition, expected impact
areas, budgeted investments, expected benefits and success parameters.

2. The CWG will be responsible for periodic reporting of the activities to the CSR Committee as
per the reporting format mentioned outlined in Section 9. Apart from this, any format as
desired by the CSR Committee or the Board would be furnished.

f.  The CWG will ensure adherence to the accounting guidelines and audit processes as per the
guldelines laid down in the Companies Act and/or the Board

8. CSR Thematic Areas
The broad areas of work that can be considered for projects or programs are listed in the Schedule VIl of
the Company Act and outlined below.

18

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive haalth care and sanitation,
including contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central Government for the
promotion of sanitation and making available safe drinking water;

Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially amang children, women, eiderly, and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects;

Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and
orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens
and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups;

Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flara and fauna, animal
welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, alr and
water; including contribution to the Clean Ganga Fund set up by the Central Government for
rejuvenation of river Ganga;

Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of
histarical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development
of traditional arts and handicrafts:

Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;
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7. Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Qlympic
sports;

8. Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any ather fund set up by the Central
Government for socio-economic development and refief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes,
the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

9, Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions
which are approved by the Central Government

10. Rural development projects.

11. Slum Development. *

The activities that the company finalizes as area of future work need to be aligned to the above areas or
any other area as allowed for by the law. The Company would not undertake any activity, which is NOT
permitted under CSR. The company will abide by all the rules under CSR conveyed through various
circulars issued by the Ministry of Corparate Affairs from time to time.

9. The Focus Areas
The following broad areas of work have been shortlisted:

1. Livelihood and Skill Enhancement — This area looks at working in urban and semi-urban areas to
identify skills and techniques that can be taught to different sets of the semi-skilled and
unskilled population to help them in generating a stable income.

The programs will be oriented tawards self-employment enablement and employability, with a
focus on young adults and women.

2. Education - In this area, the focus would be
a. Within Formal Schooling Infrastructure : Improving & enhancing the education
infrastructure & processes including repairing or creating new facilities, making schools se!f-
refiant for drinking water, sanitation and other facilities, supply of materials, enhancing the
quality of teaching imparted via training / development of systems & processes.
b. Informal Educational Initiatives: Taking education and literacy programs to children with no
access to formal schooling.

3. Health and Sanitation
a. Focus on interventions that aim at improving the health of underprivileged people
including women and children across urban and rural areas.
b, Work atong the guidelines by the government of India on creating safe and clean toilets
and water supply in schoals, slums and other areas.

| Policy Owner: internal Audit { Page 6 R




Corporate Social Respansibility Policy

ct. Addressing the special needs of weaker sections of society including but not limited ta
street children and the elderly.

d.  Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and
sanitation, and making avaitable safe drinking water;

4. Old Age homesforphanage and gender equality- Promoting gender equality, empowering
women, setting up homes and hostels for women and orphans; setting up old age homes, day
care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities
faced by socially and economically backward groups.

5. Government Funds and Initiatives ~ A portion of the CSR budgets may be allacated to
Government funds like Prime Minister Relief Fund, Clean Ganga Fund or Swachh Bharat Kosh or
others as may be specified by the Companies Act.

Though CSR activities of the company shall be guided by the focus areas as mentioned above, the
company may also engage in other CSR activities mentioned in Schedule VIl of the section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, after prior approval of the Board of Directors of the company.

Detailed program structure, activities and expected outcomes will be approved by the CSR Core
Working Group (CWG) and reported to the Board/Committee. It is recognized that the identification and
implementation acrass the focus areas would be gradually rolled out over a period of time.

10. Empanelment Process for Partners
The key steps for empanelment for a CSR partner would be as follows:

a. ldentification and Selection of Partners

b. Detsiled Proposals : A document outlining the nature of work and the key impact
metrics, including delivery, monitoring and reporting frameworks

¢. Documentation : Submission and verification of documents
Due Diligence: To establish the credibility and transparency of the Partner, verify the
governance framework, financial accountability & eligibility, capacity to conduct the
required programs and reporting norms.

e. MOU / Agreement : Execution of MOU / Agreement including financial and payment
terms

11. Implementation Process
The key implementation steps and processes have been summarized below

1. Develop a CSR Strategy — aligned with the CSR Policies of the company
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2. Operationalizing the institutional mechanism -~ CSR Committee & team identification and
appointment

3. Clear identification of CSR Budget

4. Shortlist Implementing Agencies and conducting due diligence, if required

5. Identification, selection and approval of projects

6. Finalizing agreements with the implementing agencies

7. Project Implementation

8. Documentation,

9. Monitoring and Evaluation

10. Project impact assessment {if required, by an independent third party)

11. Preparation of reporting format and placement in public demain

The company can also undertake the approved CSR activities through any of the following
agencies with the approval of the board:

= A company, established under section 8 of the Act A registered trust
* Aregistered society
» 5Bl Foundation

established
{a) by the company, either singly or along with any other company, or

{b} by the Central government or state Gevernment or any entity established under an Act of
Parliament or State legislature:

Provided that

- If company decldes to undertake CSR activities through a Company established under section 8
of the Act or a registered trust or a registered society, other than those specified above, such
company or trust or society shall have an established track record of three years in undertaking
siritar pragrams or projects; and

- The company has specified the project or programs to be undertaken through these entities,
the madalities of utilization of funds on such projects and programs and the manitoring and
reporting mechanism.

Detailed Standard Operating Procedure {SOFP) has been prepared.

12, Reporting Template
The Board of Directors of the company shall, after taking into account the recommendations of the CSR
Committee, approve the CSR policy for the company and disclose contents of such policy in its report &
the same shall be displayad on the company’s website, if any, as per the particulars mentioned below.
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The format for the annual report on CSR activities to be included in the Board's Report

1. A brief outline of the company CSR policy, including overview of the projects or program
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programs.

2. The Compaosition of the CSR Committea.
3. Average net profit of the company for the last 3 financial years.
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2 (two) % of the amount as in item 3 above).
5. Details of the CSR spent during the financial year;
3. Total Amount to be spent for the financial year;
b. Amaount unspent, if any;
£. Manner in which the amount is spent during the financizal year. {Format below)
5. CSR Sector | Projects of | Amount Amount  spent |Cumulative | Amount spent
No. Project in programs outlay on the programs {spend up | Direct or
ar which (1) Local Area | {budget) / project to the | through
activity the of others project/ Subheads reporting | Implementing
identified | project | (2} Specify the | programs {1) Direct period agency®
is state & | wise Expenditure
covered District on projects
where the (2) Over heads
project or
pragram
was
undertaken
1.
2,
3.
TOTAL

*Glve Detalls of Implementing Agency

6. In case the company is unable to spend the 2% of the average net profit for the previous 3
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for the not spending
the amount in the Board report.

7. A Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and the monitoring
of the CSR Policy, is in compliance with the CSR objective and the Palicy of the company.

8. The Report needs to be signed by

a. CEO/MD /Director
b. Chairman CSR Committee

13. Policy Review Mechanism
The CSR golicy will be under the awnership of the CSR Cammittee and will be reviewed annuaily or
earlier, if necessary.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PVT LTD
(SBICPSL)

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

(Framed under Section 178(2) & (3) of Companies Act, 2013 & RBI circular

1.

No. 2014-15/552 DNBR (PD) CC. No. 029/ 03.10.001/ 2014-15 April 10,

2015

PREAMELE

RBI has in its circular no. RBI/2014-15/552 DNER (PD) CC. No. 029/
03.10.001/2014-15 (hereinafter referred to as the “RBI Circular”). dated
April 10. 2015 stated that all applicable NBFCs shall form a Nomination
Committee to ensure 'fit and proper’ status of proposed/ existing directors.
The Nomination Committee constituted under this paragraph shall have the
same powers. functions and duties as laid down in Section 178 of the
Companies Act., 2013.

The Board has vide Circular Resolution passed on June 2, 2015 renamed
the Nomination Committee as Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

POLICY

In compliance of Section 178 (2), (3) and (4} of the Companies Act 2013 and
the RBI Circular, SBICPSL has formulated criteria/ Policy relating to the
nomination of Directors and Senior Management employees and
remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees of the Company.

OBJECTIVE
The Key Objectives of the Policy shall be:

+ Formulate the criterfa for determining qualifications. positive
attributes and independence of a Director.

« Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and who may
be appointed as Key Managerial Personnel and in senlor
managdement.

» Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP
and Senior Management Personnel.

» To formulate criteria for evaluation of every directors performance and
to carry out the same;

« To formulate Policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
rmanagerial personnel and other employees. @



DEFINITIONS
“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
“Company” means SBi Cards and Payment Services Pvt, Limited..

“Director” means Director of the Company,

“Independent Director” means an independent Director referred to in
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013,

“Bey Managerial Personnel” (KMP} means

s Manager & CEO
» Company Secretary
» Chief Financial Officer

“Senior Management Personnel “means

personnel of the company who are members of its core management team
excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one
level below the CEQ. including the functional heads.

Constitution

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board consists of 3
members, of which two are the nominees of State Bank of India and one is
the nominee director of GE Capital. The role of the Committee is as under:

Role of the Committee

The Committee shall:

* Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid
down and to recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

» To carry out evalualion of every director's performance;

¢ To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a

policy. relating to the remuneration for the directors. key managerial
personnel and other employees.

* To establish criteria for fit and proper as per the guidelines issued by

Reserve Bank of India or any other regulatory body or applicable statute,
rule or regulation.



« To evaluate the composition and size of the Board in order to ensure that
the Board is comprised of members reflecting the proper expertise. skills.
attributes and personal and professional backgrounds for service as
Director of the Company.

« To establish. implement and monitor policies and processes regarding
principles of corporate Governance in order to ensure the Board's
compliance with its fiduciary duties to the Company and its shareholders

« Such other functions/area/term as desired/referred by the Board from time

to time or required under applicable law /listing agreement. for time being in
force.

Appointment/ Nomination of Directors, Key Manageriat Personnel &
Senior Management Personnel

(i) Appointment criteria and Qualification of Directors

The Director shall possess appropriate skills. experience and knowledge
in one or more fields of Finance, Banking. Law. Management. sales,
marketing, administration. research. Corporate Governance, technical
operations or other disciplines related to the Company’s business.

The Director shall fulfil the requirements of Company's Policy on fit and
proper criteria for directors and shall be appointed and hold position in
accordance with the Joint Venture Agreement, Companies Act, 2013 and
Articles of Association of the Company.

Maximum Term/ Tenure of Independent Director

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive
years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment
on passing of a Special Resolution by the Company.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive
terms of 5 years each, but such independent Director shall be eligible for
appointment after expiration of 3 years of ceasing lo become an
independent Director.

Independence of Independent Directors

The Independent Director has or had no pecuniary relationship with the
Company, its holding or associate Company. or their promoters, or
Directors. during the two immediately preceding [inancial years or during
the current financial year.



(ii)

(1)

(iv)

Appointment criteria and qualification of EMP and persons in
Senior Management

A person should possess adequate qualification. expertise and
experience for the position he / she is considered for appointment. as
per Company's requirements and applicable laws. Also. the
appointment of KMP and persons in Senior Management to be
recommended by Advisory Committee as per JV Agreement.

Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every

Director at regular interval (Yearly). Format of evaluation shal]l be as
per Annexure 1.

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under
any other applicable Act. rules and regulations there under, the
Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel
subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules.
regulations. Otherwise, the power of removal rests with the executives
of the Company as per the HR Policy.

Remuneration to Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel/ Seniar
Management Personnel & other employees

» The Directors nominated by State Bank of India/ G E Capital and
whe are full - time employees of the Bank or G E Capital wili not get
any Remuneration from the Company including sitting fees.

* The Independent and other Non - Executive Directors may receive
sitting fees and such other remuneration as permissible under the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall
be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Comimittee and approved by the Board of Directors,

* Remuneration paid to KMPs and to other employees:

o Manager & CEO is a person on deputation from State Bark of
India. His/her Remuneration & perquisites will be as per the
scales of salary in State Bank of India,

o CFO is a person on deputation from State Bank of India.
His/her Remuneration & perquisites will be as per his scales of
salary in State Bank of India.

s

T




o Other deputees from State Bank of India shall be paid
Remuneration & perquisites as per their scales of salary in
State Bank of India.

o Other deputees {rom GE Capital shall be paid Remuneration &
perquisites as per the market rate for such positions. by the
Company.

o Other employees and Company Secretary shall be paid
Remuneration & perquisites in accordance with processes and
procedures [ollowed by the Company to determine the
Remuneration & perquisites.

o Criteria of performance evaluation and payment of Performance
Linked Incentive to KMPs, Senior Management Personnel and
other employees shall be in accordance with Company's Policy.

The Policy shall be reviewed annually or at earlier intervals. if necessary.
Consequent upon any changes in law/rules/regulation/regulatory
guidelines etc.. such changes shall be deemed to be a part of the policy
until the policy is reviewed and approved next time.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Policy. in case of any
contradiction of the provision of this policy with any existing legislations.
rules, regulations, or laws, the provisions of such law, legislation, niles,
regulation or enactment shall prevail aver the Policy.

L
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Extract of Annual Return
{form (Form No. MGT 9)}

1. Registration and other details of Company
i) CIN: U65999DL1S98PTC093849

ii) Registration Date: 15-05-1998

ii) Name of the Company: SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Private Limited Company

v) Address of the Registered office and contact details

UNIT 401 & 402, 4TH FLOOR, AGGARWAL MILLENNIUM TOWER, E-
,2,3, NETAJI SUBHASH PLACE, WAZIRPUR, NEW DELHI - 110034
Telephone with STD : 0124-4589803

Fax Number : 0124-3987306

E-Mail Address : payalm.chhabra@shbicard.com

vi) vi) Whether listed company: No
viij  Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:

Debentures:

Name of Registrar & Transfer

Agents: Zuari Investments Limited
First Floor,5 Commercial Centre
Address
JJasola
Town / City : New Delhi
State : Pin Code: 110025
Telephone : 91-11-46581300/41697900

With STD Area Code Number
Fax Number :
Email Address :

Equity Shares:

Name of Registrar & Transfer
Agents:

Address

Town / City :

State : Pin Code:

Telephone :

With STD Area Code Number

[Fax Number :
Email Address :

011
011-40638679
rtagiadventz.zuarimoney.com

Skyline Financial Services Private
Limited

4/A/9, Gundecha Onclave,
[herani Road, Sakinaka,

Mumbai
400072
62215779
022

Subhashdhingreha skylinerta.com
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Principal Business Activity of the Company:
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the

company shall be stated:

Activities through
credit cards

3l Name and Description of | NIC Code of the| % to total turnover
No. | main products / services Preduct/ service of the company
1. Credit Card Business Division 64 and 66 | 100%

J. Particulars of Holding, subsidiary and associate Company
Sl. | Name and address of | CIN/GLN | Holding/ % of | Applicable
No. | the company subsidiary |shares | Section
/ held
associate
1 | STATE BANK OF INDIA - Holding 60% | Section
State Bank Bhavan, 2(46)
Corporate Centre,

Madame Cama Road,
Nariman Point,
Mumbai, Maharashtra

400021

4. Shareholding Pattern of the Company
a, Category-wise Share Holding

Category  of | No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end | %
Shareholders | beginning of the year of Cha
the year nge
duri
ng
the
year
Demat |Physi |Total |%of |Demat |Phy |Total |% of
cal ' Total sical Total
Share Shar
s es
A. Promoters | 471,00 {2 471,0 | 60% 471,00 |2 471,0 | 60%
(1) Indian 0,000 00,00 0,000 00,00 0
Banks / FI 2 2
SBi
Sub-total (A) | 471,00 |2 471,0 160% 471,00 |2 471,0 | 60%
{1):- 0,000 00,00 0,000 £0,00 0
2 2




(2} Foreign 314,00 |- 314,0 {40% |314,00]- 314,0 | 40%
Bodies Corp. | 0,000 00,00 0,000 00,00
GE CAPITAL 0 o]
MAURITIUS
OVERSEAS
INVESTMENT
5
Sub-total (A)|314,00 |- 314,0 1 40% | 314,00 |- 314,0 | 40%
{2]):- 0,000 00,00 0,000 00,00
0 0
Total 785,00 |2 785,0 | 100% | 785,00 | 2 785,0 | 100
shareholding | 0,000 00,00 0,000 00,00 | %
of Promoter 2 2
(A) =
{A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public NIL
Shareholding
Sub-total Nil
(B)(1):-
C. Shares Nil
held by
Custodian for
GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total | 785,00 |2 785,0 | 100% | 785,00 | 2 785,0 | 100
{A+B+C) 0,000 00,00 0,000 00,00 | %
2 2
b. Shareholding of Promoters
S | Shareho | Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end
1 {lder's beginning of of the year
N | Name the year
o.
No.of |Y% of | %of No.of [%of | %of o4
Shares | total | Shares | Shares | total | Shares | cha
Shar | Pledge Shar | Pledge |nge
es d/ es d/ in
of encum of encum | sha
the bered the bered |re
com | to total com | to total | hold
pany | shares pany | shares |ing
duri
ng_ |




the
year
1. | 8Bt 471,00 [ 60% |0 471,00 | 60% [0 0
0,002 0,002
GE 314,00 | 40% |0 314,00 | 40% [0 0
CAPITAL | 0,000 0,000
MAURIT
s
OVERSE
AS
INVEST
MENTS

(o]

. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding: No Change

. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders [other than Directors,
Promoters and Hoiders of GDRs and ADRs): Nil

. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: Nii




5. Indebtness
Indebtedness of the Company inciuding interest outstanding/accrued but not
due for payment

Secured Loans | Unsecured Deposits | Total
excluding Loans {INR) indebtedness
deposits (INR) (INR) {INR)

Indebtedness
at the
beginning of
the financial
year

i} Principal | 51 454,153,491 |7,833,197,561 |- 59,287,351,052
Amount

ii) Interest
due but not
paid

ili} Interest
accrued but
not due 73,099,394 - 73,099,394

Total (i+ii+iii)
51,454,153,491 |7,906,296,955 | - 59,360,450,446

Change in
Indebtedness
during the
financial
year

* Addition | 345,743,609,362 | 28,675,442,699 | 374,419,052,061

+ Reduction
325,580,586,290 | 25,573,289,177 | - 351,153,875,467

Net Change
20,163,023,072 | 3,102,153,522 | - 23,265,176,594

Indebtedness
at the end of
the financial
year 71,617,176,564 |10,862,312,942 | - 82,479,489,506
i} Principal
Amount




i) Interest
due but not
paid

iif} Interest
accrued but
not due

146,137,334

- 146,137,534

Total {i+ii+iii)

71,617,176,564

11,008,450,476 | -

82,625,627,040

Note: Principal Amount is net of unamortised discount of Rs. 855,652,336
(Previous Year- Rs. 397,210,484) in secured loans & Rs. 37,687,058 (Previous
Year- Rs. 66,802,439) in Unsecured loans

. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel mentioning their
gross salary, value of perquisites, profits in lieu of salary, etc

A. Remuneration to

Manager:

Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or

Sl
ne.

Particulars of

Remuneration

Total Amount

Manager/CEQ -
Jasuja

Shr  Vijay

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per
provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites
ufs 17(2)Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lien of
salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961

58,539,576

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

S

Commission
- as % of profit
- aothers, specify...

wm

Others, please specify

0

Total A

5859576

Ceiling as per the Act

NA




B. Remuneration to other directors:

8. Particulars of | Name of Directors Total
No. | Remuneration Amount
Non-Executive Shri Smt Shri
Director Ashwini Kr | Saraswathy Percival
Sharma Athmanathan | Sam
Billimoria
1. Sitting Fee 75,000 1,25,000 15,000 2,15,000
Total 2,15,000
Ceiling as per the | NA NA
Act
C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than
MD/manager/WTD
Sl Particulars of | Total Amount
no. Remuneration
Mr. Digmanu | Mr. Company
Gupta Praveen Secretary
CFO (01-04- | Singh
2016 - 09-09-|CFO (01-
2016) 11-2016 to
31-03-
2017)
1. Gross salary | 2117922 1695801 3779543
{a) Salary as per
provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
{b) Value of
perquisites u/s
17(2)income-tax Act,
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of
salary under section
17{3) Income-tax Act,
1961
2. Stock Option 0 0
3. Sweat Equity 8] 0
4. Commission 0 0
- as % of profit
- others, specily...
3. Others, please specily | 0 0
Total A 12117922 1695801 3779543

7. Penalties/punishment/compounding of offences



Type Section of | Brief

the Description
Companies
Act

Details of
Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority | Appeal
|[RD / | made,
NCLT if any
/ (give
COURT] | Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Date: 99-08-2017
Place: ‘\'\\lbﬂ\":ﬂ\\l

;J,.ngx,

CHAIRMAN
DIN: 02011213



- Gandhi Minocha & Co.
m ' Chartered Accountants
\ / B-6, Shakti Nagar Extension, Near Laxmi

Bai College, New Delhi -110052 (INDIA)
Telephone: +91 98100 37334, 42273690
Telefax :+91-11-2730800, 27303070

E-mail : gandhica@yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(3To the Members of SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited

o

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Accounting principal generally accepted in India including Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
he assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.




We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing Specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

_ We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
Jaudit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its Profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies(Auditor’s Report) Order 2016(“the Order”),issued by the Central
Government of India in term of sub-section(11) of section 143 of the Act, we enclose in the Annexure
“1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued the directions and sub directions indicating
the areas to be examined in term of Sub Section (5) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, the

compliance of which is set out in Annexure “2”.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.




d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representation received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from
being appointed as director in terms section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure “3”; and

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

iv.

Q

PLACE: DELHI
DATED : 27/04/2017

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note “36” to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The company has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statement as to holdings as
well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30"
December 2016. However as stated in note no. “50” to the financial statements company’s
collection agencies and banks have received on behalf of the company amount aggregating to
Rs. 1,143,821,203/- from transactions which are not permitted.

FOR GANDHI MINOCHA & CO

M.NO. 092867



i)

o

ii)

iii)

vi)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Annexure “1” to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in our report of even date)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

The company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed
assets are verified once in a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to size of the company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to information and explanation given to us, the company is not having any immovable
property. Thus paragraph 3(i) (c) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The company is a NBFC and primarily rendering credit card services. Accordingly, it does not hold
any physical inventories. Thus paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(@)

(b)

The Company has granted unsecured loans in form of credit cards to twelve directors who are
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
maximum amount outstanding during the year was Rs. 44,69,361/- and the year-end balance of
such loans was Rs. 11,94,859/-. The Company has granted unsecured loans in form of credit
cards, to 12 companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The maximum amount outstanding during the year was Rs 12,40,33,472/- and the year-
end balance of such loans was Rs 9,78,52,538/-.

In our opinion the terms & conditions of the grant of such loans were not prima facie prejudicial
to the company’s interest.

In the case of loans granted in the form of Credit Card to the persons listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act, the borrower have been regular in the repayment of the
principal and interest as stipulated.

There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to parties listed in register
maintained under section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any transaction in respect of loan, investment, Guarantee & security covered under
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. Thus paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public during the year
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules frame there under.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
the Companies act, 2013 for any of the services rendered by the Company.

tion 148(1) of




vii) (a) According to information & explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

(b)

records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of the
undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees State Insurance, Income tax, Sales-
tax, Service tax, Customs duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and any statutory dues have been generally
regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained
to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Excise Duty.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Value added tax, Service tax,
Employees’ State Insurance and material statutory dues were in arrear as at 31 March 2017for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of Income
Tax/Sales tax /Duty of Customs/Duty of Excise/Value Added Tax/Cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute except the following:

Y Name of Nature of the Dues Amount Period to Forum where dispute
! the (Rs.) which the is pending
Statue amount relates
Service Service Tax demand on Incentive 18,724,731 | F.Y. 2003-04 to | Customs, Excise and
Tax Income 2006-07 Service tax appellate
Tribunal
Service Service Tax demand on Incentive 4,792,871 | F.Y. 2007-08 to | Commissioner of
Tax Income 2008-09 Central Excise
(Appeals)
Service Service Tax demand on Incentive 2,460,096 | F.Y. 2009-10 Customs, Excise and
Tax Income Service tax appellate
Tribunal
Service Denial of Cenvat credit in proportion of 175,336,049 | F.Y. 2009-10 Customs, Excise and
Tax income derecognized and Denial of Service tax appellate
Cenvat credit on certain input services Tribunal
Service Denial of Cenvat credit in proportion of 50,288,962 | F.Y. 2000-11 to | Customs, Excise and
Tax income derecognized and Denial of 2011-12 Service tax appellate
Cenvat credit on certain input services Tribunal
(') Service Demand of Cenvat credit of Services tax 2,263,167 | F.Y. 2008-09 to | Commissioner of
) Tax availed on group medical insurance and 2011-12 Central Excise
group life insurances services (Appeals)
TOTAL 253,865,876

Net of deposit of Rs. 12,32, 209/-.
Out of the above Rs. 1,964,565/ has been provided in books of accounts.

viii)

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given

to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a banks or dues to
debenture holders. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions or g
Government.




ix)  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

X)  According to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the company or on the company by
its officers & employees has been noticed or reported during the year. However, certain instances of
customer frauds on the Company have been reported during the year. As informed, these primarily
relate to fraudulent usage of credit cards issued by the company. The total amount involved in these
frauds was Rs. 49,461,633/- (previous Year Rs. 41,534,035/-).

xi)  The Company is a Private Limited Company as such the provisions of Sec 197 of the companies Act are
not applicable to the company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order is not applicable.

xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.

xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. However, during the year company
has issued 8.10% unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures worth Rs. 200 Crore and based on our
examination of the records of the company requirement of Section 42 of Companies Act, 2013 has
been complied with and the amount raised has been used for the purpose for which the funds were
raised.

xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
) persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi) The company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
and the registration has been obtained.

FOR GANDHI MINOCHA & CO

UNTANTS

PLACE: DELHI
DATED: 27/04/2017

M.NO. 092867



Annexure “2” to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in our report of even date)

Report on direction and Sub- directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
section 143(5) of Companies Act 2013 on accounts of SBI Cards and Payment Service Private Limited for
the year 2016-17.

Annexure — I

Directions for the year 2016-17.

I Title Deeds for freehold and Lease
hold

Whether the Company has clear
title /lease deeds for freeholds and
leaseholds respectively? If not,
please state the area of freehold
and leasehold land for which title/
lease deeds are not available?

The company is not having any freehold property.
The company has taken various office premises on
lease as detailed in List ‘1’. As informed to us, and
on examination of records there is no leasehold
property for which lease deeds are not available.

Il System of Accounts & Financial
Control

Whether there are any cases of
waiver/ write off of debtors/ loans/
interest etc., if yes, the reasons
there for and amount involved.

The Company has a process by which waiver of
loans/advances/interest take place in cases of final
settlement of delinquent accounts. The waivers are
reviewed and are subject to approval on the basis of
a pre-defined authority matrix. The total amount
waived towards settlement during the current year
amounts to Rs. 1,365,939,517 out of which
900,558,559 pertain to written off customers.

Further, the company waives off/reverses some
charges during the normal course of business
towards the goodwill gesture etc. amounting to Rs.
844,669,741.

with third parties & assets received
as gift / grant(s) from Govt. or
other authorities?

11, Inventory
Whether  proper records are | This clause is not applicable as the Company does
maintained for inventories lying | not hold any inventory, further the company has not

received any asset as gift from Govt. or other
authorities during the year.




Annexure —I1

Sub-Directions under section 143(5) of Companies Act 2013 for the year 2016-17.

On the basis of the books of accounts of the Company, the reply to questions and /or information required is
supplied as under:-

’l 1. Investments
Y

Whether the titles of ownership in respect | There is no investment of the Company at the end of
of CGS/SGS/ Bonds/ Debentures etc. are | 31°° March 2017, except 1001 shares amounting to Rs.
available in physical/demat form and | 10010/- of SBI Foundation allotted on 16.01.2017. These
these, in aggregate, agree with the |shares are in physical form and amount is in agreement
respective amounts shown in the | with amount shown in Company’s books of accounts.

Company’s books of accounts? If not,

details may be stated. In addition to this Investments in Mutual Funds are

purchased/sold in demat form, and demat account
shows only quantity. The same are in agreement with
quantity as per other relevant data available for
investment. Outstanding as on 31°* March 2017 is NIL.




Annexure - “3” to the Auditors’ Report
(Refer to in our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SBI Cards and Payment Services
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

 )Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent

( applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls

“and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. )

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting




A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations’ of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
_fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
Jover financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR GANDHI MINOCHA & CO
CHARTERED+

(UPLACE: DELHI
“DATED: 27/04/2017

M.NO. 092867



Gandhi Minocha & Co.
% ‘ Chartered Accountants
{ / B-6, Shakti Nagar Extension, Near Laxmi

Bai College, New Delhi -110052 (INDIA)
Telephone: +91 98100 37334, 42273690
Telefax :+91-11-2730800, 27303070

E-mail : gandhica@yahoo.com

Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of accounts of M/S SBI Cards & Payments Services Pvt. Ltd. for the
year ended 31% March 2017 in accordance with the directions/ sub-directions issued by C & AG of
India under Section 143(5) of Companies Act 2013 and certify that we have complied with all the

directions/sub-directions issued to us.

FOR GANDHI MINOCHA & CO
@) CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN:000458N

PLACE: DELHI
DATED: 27/04/2017

M.NO. 092867



Gandhi Minocha & Co.

Bai College, New Delhi -110052 (INDIA)
Telephone: +91 98100 37334, 42273690
Telefax :+91-11-2730800, 27303070
E-mail : gandhica@yahoo.com

| : Chartered Accountants
% ‘ B-6, Shakti Nagar Extension, Near Laxmi

Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
SBI Cards and Payment Services Pvt. Ltd,

. DLF Infinity Towers,
11" Floor,

Gurgaon-India

Dear Sir,

Subject:-Non Banking financial Companies Auditors Report (Reserve Bank) Directions

In addition to our report made under section 143 of Companies Act, 2013 on the Accounts of SBI Cards &
Payment Services Private Limited (“The Company”) for the year ending 31°* March 2017 and as required by
the Non-banking financial Companies Auditors Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998 issued by Reserve Bank
of India on the matters specified in Para 3 & 4 of the said Directions to extent applicable to the Company, we
report that:

O

. The Company had applied for Registration as provided in Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act 1934 (2 of 1934) and has been granted certificate of registration (COR) by Reserve Bank of India
on 06-10-1998 having registration number 14.01328.

. According to the information & explanation given to us, the company is entitled to continue to hold

COR in terms of its Assets/Income pattern as on 31** March 2017.

- The company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in Master Direction -

Non-Banking Financial Company Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,2016.

. The Board Directors have passed the resolution not to accept public deposit during the year 1st April

2016 to 31st March 2017 as its board meeting held on 27th April 2016.

. The company has not accepted any deposit during the year ended 31st March 2017.

- In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanation given to us, the

Company has complied, in all material respect, with the prudential norms income




recognition, accounting standards, assets classification and Provisioning for Bad & doubtful debts as
applicable to it in terms of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

7. The Capital Adequacy Ratio as at 31°* March 2017 as disclosed in the notes to Accounts has been
correctly arrived at 17.10% which is compliance with the minimum CRAR prescribed by the Reserve
Bank of India: and

8. The Company is yet to furnish RBI the annual settlement of capital fund, risk assets/exposure and risk
asset ratio (NBS 7). Due Date for filing the return is 30™ June 2017.

The Report has been prepared by Gandhi Minocha & Company & Co., under the requirement of Non-Banking

Financial Company Auditor reports (Reserve Bank) Direction and is prepared solely for the purpose of

providing selected information as required by the said directions. This report is not intended for the general
s circutation or Publication and is not to be duplicated for any purpose without prior written consent.

FOR GANDHI MINOCHA & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN00458N

PLACE: DELHI
DATED: 27/04/2017

M.NO. 092867

O



List 1’ of Annexure - | of Annexure “2” to Independent Auditors’ Report

S S — Branch Address City State District
No. Name
3rd floor, Block A, Apeejay House, 15 Park Street, West
1 Kolkata Kolkata B I Kolkata
Kolkata - 700 016 enga
Door No.36/6 & 7, 1st floor, Ashirwadh Building, Coimbat Tamil
2 Coimbatore Nad Coimbatore
D.B. Road, R.S.Puram, Coimbatore 641002 ore adu
. . . . Tamil .
3 Chennai #141, 10th Floor, TVH Agnitio Park, Chennai, 600096 Chennai Nadu Chennai
10th to 12th Floors, DLF Infinity Towers, Tower C,
Gurgaon - . .
4 Tower C Block 2, Building 3, DLF Cyber City, Gurgaon 122002, Gurgaon | Haryana Gurgaon
Haryana
2nd & 7" Floor , DLF Infinity Towers, Tower B, Block 2,
G -
5 sl Building 3, DLF Cyber City, Gurgaon 122002, Gurgaon | Haryana Gurgaon
Tower B
Haryana
Fourth Floor, Unit No. 401,402 Aggarwal
6 Delhi Millennium Tower, E-1,2,3, Netaji Subhash Palace, Delhi Delhi New Delhi
Wazirpur, New Delhi-34
Ahmeda .
7 Ahmedabad | Corporate house, Ashram Road Ahmedabad — 380009 bad Gujarat Ahmedabad
5th Floor Arya Bhangy Pinnacle, 37/993 H,
8 Cochin Cochin Kerala Ernakulam
Sahodaran, Ayyappan Road, Elamkulam, Kochi 682035
CTS No.5436/B, 5437-A, 5433-C1, 5428,5429/1,5429/2,
. . . | Maharash Mumbai
9 Mumbai 5430 and 5436-C, KoleKalyan, Off CST Road, Kalina, Mumbai
tra suburban
Santacruz (East)- Mumbai 400098
Maharash
10 Pune SKY VISTA, Lohegaon, Vinman Nagar, Pune — 411014 Pune at;ras Pune
Unit Nos. 3C, 3D & 3E, 3rd Floor, Queens Plaza,
Hyderab | Tel
11 Hyderabad 1-8-382, Queens Plaza, S.P. Road, yazra ¢ a:gan Hyderabad
Secunderabad-500003, Telangana
Unit Nos. 1001 - 1002, 10th Floor, A Block,
12 Banealore Bangalor | Karnatak Bangalore
§ Embassy Heights, 13, Magrath Road, Ashok Nagar, e a Rural

Bengaluru, 560025 Karnataka




SBI Cards And Payment Services Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017
(Amounts in Indian Rupees)

O

Note no. As at Asat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 2 7,850,000,020 7,850,000,020
Reserves and surplus 3 6,658,897,437 3,700,391,166
14,508,897,457 11,550,391,186
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 4 5,011,823,705 3,411,352,183
Long-term provisions 5 478,901,886 453,265,225
5,490,725,591 3,864,617,408
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 6 77,059,848,827 55,869,922,671
Trade payables 7
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 10,699,729 3,339.268
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 1,176,871,563 855,608,758
enterprises
Other current liabilities 8 4,730,036,468 2,870,058,742
Short-term provisions 9 5,313,449,119 3,789,228.838
88,290,905,706 63,388,158,277
108,290,528,754 78,803,166,871
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 36,142,023 20,647,283
Deferred tax asset (net) 11 1,281,065,167 902,032,967
Long-term loans and advances 12 6,771,781,474 5.921,427,429
Non-current Investments 13 10,010 -
Other non-current assets 14 200,000 200,000
8,089,198,674 6,844,307,679
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 16 2,829,463,227 2,744411.711
Short-term loans and advances 17 96,376,933,463 68,538,127,801
Other current assets 18 994,933,390 676,319,680
100,201,330,080 71,958,859,192
108,290,528,754 78,803,166,871
Significant accounting policies & Notes to accounts 1to 50

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For Gandhi Minocha & Co.
Chartered Accountants

istration No.: 000458N
{5 77 | %
Viembership No.: 092867

Date: ‘)‘I{D\-\\l@\_\ .
Place: N \

Oriyhe
Directol Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited

7

DIN: 0" 8  DIN:0\(39S0b

\l

Vijay Ja
et Executive Officer

Date: 2 ) !b\\ 7 \
Place: QQJ/\\

Congpany\§ecretary
Payal Mittal




SBI Cards And Payment Services Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31 March 2017

(Amounts in Indian Rupees)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Note no. 31st March 2017 31st March 2016
INCOME
Revenue from operations 19 32,386,468,756 23,868,216,500
Other income 20 1,248,423,776 1,049,629,213
Total Income 33,634,892,532 24,917,845,713
EXPENDITURE
Employee benefit expenses 21 1,011,383,217 791,693,262
Finance cost 22 5,215,845,249 4,303,224,785
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 10,449,727 8,433,974
Operating and other expenses 23 17,869,779,694 12,707,547,020
CSR Expenses 24 70,389,782 46,402,762
Bad debts written off / Provision for doubtful debt 25 3,472,459,611 2,678,739,260
Total expenses 27,650,307,280 20,536,041,063
Profit before tax 5,984,585,252 4,381,804,650
Tax expense
Current tax charge / (credit) 2,322,568,663 1,027,841,857
Current tax charge / (credit) - previous year (11,255,186) 7,709,692
MAT Credit 178,058,994 430,969,299
MAT previous year ) (29,832,865) (14,555,296)
Deferred tax charge / (credit) (420,106,379) 87,861,060
Deferred tax charge / (credit) - previous year 41,074,181 2,971,089
2,080,507,408 1,542,797,701
Profit after tax 3,904,077,844 2,839,006,949
Earnings per equity share 33
Basic and diluted eamning per share 4.97 3.62
Face Value per equity share 10.00 10.00
Significant accounting policies & Notes to accounts 1to 50
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For Gandhi Minocha & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 000458N /
V7
Direct % Director
DIN:O10$4788  DIN: ©\6350 f0b
\i

asuja
Chief Executive Officer

id

Date: 27 [om[12\1 | Date: 27 | ow(m\‘]

Place: MWD&M\ Place: %59

C{mp! Sécretary
Payal Mittal

Praveen Kugnar Singh
Chief Finantial Officer

A
\\9"
v



SBI Cards And Payment Services Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31 March 2017
(Amounts in Indian Rupees)

¢

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31st March 2017 31st March 2016
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax 5,984,585,252 4,381,804,650
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 10,449,727 8,433,974
(Profit)/ Loss on sale of assets (net) (93,945) (189,846)
Employees stock options (764,041) (79,400)
Liabilities written back (21,742,653) (43,820,881)
Bad debts written off / provision for doubtful debts 3,472,459,611 2,678,739,261
Interest Income on Fixed deposit (59,095) -
Provision for doubtful advances (6,220,988) 476,139
Unamortised membership fees 440,489,681 249,448,624
Profit on sale of Investment (4,337,850) (5,242,121)
Debenture issue expenses expensed off during the year 7,587,712 1,188,727
Amortisation of Interest on commercial papers 4,662,368,529 3,904,897,638
Lease equalization reserve 918,784 (97,004)
Commercial Paper Issuing Cost 50,686,575 40,052,070
Interest on debentures 396,327,318 236,576,927
Interest on Cash Credit 156,738,406 161,750,220
Unrealised foreign exchange (Gain)/loss (net) (3,830,105) 3,972,403
9,160,977.666 7,236,106,731
Operating profit before working capital changes 15,145.562,918 11,617,911,381
Adjustment for changes in working capital
(Increase)/ decrease in long and short-term loans and advances (32,251,442,076) (19,323,412,545)
(Increase)/ decrease in other current assets (318,613,711) (333,602,763)
Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables 328,623,267 (46,146,051)
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 569,363,103 313,331,085
Increase/ (decrease) in long & short-term provisions 1,483,298,620 1,457,147,243
(30,188,770,797) (17,932,683.031)
Cash fronV (used) in operations (15,043,207,879) (6.314,771,650)
Finance Cost Paid:
- Interest on Cash Credit (156,738,406) (161,750,220)
- Commercial Paper Issuing Cost (50,686,575) (40,052,070)
- Interest paid on debentures (323,289,177) (226,684,931)
- Interest paid on commercial papers (4,492,253,250) (3,975.808,250)
(5,022,967,408) (4.404,295471)
Cash generated from operating activities before taxes (20,066,175,287) (10,719,067,121)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (2,304,466,155) (863,035,923)
Net cash generated/ (used) in operating activities (22,370,641,442) (11,582,103,044)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (except assets taken on lease) (15,439,965) (469,342)
Investment purchased (12,700,010,010) (9,670,000,000)
Investment sold 12,704,337,849 9,675,242,122
Sale of assets 2,630.851 1,689,149
Net cash from investing activities (8,481,275) 6,461,929
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash credit raised/ (repaid) during the year (26,380,747,374) 10,850,639,640
Finance Lease paid during the year (10,829,111) (9,818,862)
Debentures issued/(repaid) during the year 2,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Commercial Papers raised/(repaid) during the year 47,400,558,250 509,612,000
Interim dividend paid (785,000,002) (785,000,002)
Tax on dividend (159.807,530) (159,807,530)
Net cash from/ (used) in financing activities 22,464,174,233 11,405,625,246
D. Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 85,051,516 (170,015,869)
Cash and bank balances as at the beginning of the year 2,744,411,711 2,914,427,580
Cash and bank balances as at the end of the year 2,829,463,227 2,744,411,711
85,051,516 (170,015,864

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS )




SBI Cards And Payment Services Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31 March 2017
(Amounts in Indian Rupees)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31st March 2017 31st March 2016

Note:
1. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the ‘Indirect Method' specified in Accounting Standard 3, Cash Flow Statement, as per

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

2. Cash and cash equivalents include: Amount (In Rs.)
Cash in hand -
Balance with Scheduled banks on

- Current accounts 73,028,189
-Funds in transit (Lying in nodal account of intermediatery/payment 1,674,190,445
gateway aggregator)

- Deposit accounts -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,747,218,634
Add : Earmarked balances with bank 1,082,244,593
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 2,829,463,227

As per our report of even date attached.

For Gandhi Minocha & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limpgted

Registration No.: 000458N '}\/ ie
@ (5 cmmrenee A W W
4 fxCCOUNTAN["!s ; Dirdc Director Cothpany Sedeyary
s DINOMDS3IY  DIN: p p5G 0L Payal Mitual
i/ v - §
v :
Vija! um; h
iel Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Date: 9:1[0\-\‘%\"\ N

Place: "\) uo Od_\,\\

:z*:;agpajlf“*m; B
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C.

SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Background

SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited (‘the Company’) is an unlisted non-deposit accepting
systemically important non-banking financial company (‘NBFC-ND-ST’) registered with the Reserve
Bank of India (‘RBI’). The Company is a joint venture between State Bank of India and GE Capital
Corporation, USA. The Company is engaged in issuing credit cards to consumers in India.

On 7 October 1998, the company received a Certificate of Registration from the RBI under section 45
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to carry on the business of a Non-Banking Financial
Institution without acceptance of public deposits. Accordingly, all provisions of the Reserve Bank Act
1934 and all directions, guidelines or instructions of the RBI that have been issued from time to time
and are in force and as applicable to a Non-Banking Financial Company are applicable to the
company,

The company also acts as corporate insurance agent for selling insurance policies to credit card
customers. The company has been granted license on 01 March 2012 by the Insurance Regulatory &
Development Authority (IRDA) under the Insurance Regulatory & Development Authority (Insurance
brokers) regulations, 2002 to act as a corporate insurance agent, valid up to 12 September 2017.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on
the accrual basis of accounting, in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) and conform to the statutory requirements, circulars and guidelines issued by the
RBI from time to time to the extent they are applicable to the company. The financial statements are
prepared to comply in all material aspects the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies Accounts) Rules, to the extent applicable, as
adopted consistently by the Company. The financial statements have been prepared in Indian rupees.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the financial reporting framework
applicable to the Company requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Examples of such estimates include provision for doubtful debts and estimated useful life of
Tangible Assets. Actual results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompanying
financial statements. Any changes in estimates are recognised prospectively.

Revenue recognition
(i) Interest income
Interest income on dues from credit card holders is recognised on accrual basis except for non-

performing advances (NPA), in respect of which income is recognised upon realisation only. Income
derecognised on NPAs s is netted off from total income.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts
(ii) Income from membership fees and services

First annual fee and subsequent renewal fee are recognised over a period of one year as this more
closely reflects the period to which the fee relates to.

Interchange income is recognised on accrual basis.

Interest Income is recognised over the tenure of loans.

All other service income/ fees are recorded at the time of occurrence of the respective events.
(iii) Income From Investments

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Excess of sale price over purchase price of mutual fund units is recognised as income at the time of
sale.

(iv) Unidentified receipts & Stale cheques

The total unidentified receipts which could not be credited or adjusted in the customers’ accounts for
lack of complete & correct information is considered as liability in balance sheet. The estimated
unidentified receipts aged more than 6 months and up to 3 years towards the written off customers is
written back as income on balance sheet date. Further, the unresolved unidentified receipts aged more
than 3 years are also written back as income on balance sheet date.

The liability for stale cheques aged for more than three years is written back as income.

(v) Recovery from bad debts written off is recognised as income on the basis of actual realisations
from customers.

Provision & write-off of non-performing assets

The accounts of the customers where minimum amount due is paid within 90 days from payment due
date (except restructured advances) are classified as standard assets. Customers having overdue from
91 to 190 days from payment due date (i.e. 180 days from Statement Date) and customers whose
outstanding have been restructured are considered as Non-performing assets (NPA’s). Provision @
25% is created on principle amount outstanding of NPA assets. In case of fraud cases 100% provision
is made on amount outstanding. Customers having overdue of 191 days from payment due date or
more days is written off.

Provision on Standard Assets

The company has created a Provision @ 0.40% on standard assets.

Expenditure

Expenses are recognised on accrual basis. Expenses incurred on behalf of other companies, for sharing
personnel, etc. are allocated to them at cost and reduced from respective expense classifications.
Similarly, expense allocation received from other companies is included within respective expense
classifications.




SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Expenditure on issue of debentures is amortised over the tenure of the debentures on the straight-line
method.

Income/Expenditure in Foreign Currency

The expenses/income in foreign currency is accounted at applicable rate of exchange as per generally
accepted accounting principles

Tangible & Intangible Assets

Tangible & Intangible Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. All costs related to the
acquisition and installation of Tangible Assets are capitalised. Tangible Assets under construction,
advances paid towards acquisition of Tangible Assets and cost of assets not ready for use before year-
end, are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Intangible assets comprise purchase of software, recognised at cost and amortised over a period of 2
years, which represents the period over which the Company expects to derive the economic benefits
from the use of the asset.

Depreciation & amortization

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of each asset as
determined by the management. If the management’s estimate of the useful life of a fixed asset at the
time of acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent review is shorter than
that envisaged in beginning, depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on management’s estimate
of the useful life/ remaining useful life. Pursuant to this policy, depreciation is provided at the
following rates which are in line with the corresponding rates prescribed in Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013:

Description Useful Life
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Office equipment

Computers & Computer Equipment
Owned Vehicles

Leasehold Improvement

Computer Server

AN 3 00 W

Improvements of leasehold property are depreciated over the period of the lease term or useful life,
whichever is shorter.

Assets acquired under finance lease are depreciated over the lease term or useful life, whichever is
shorter.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated in the Statement of Profit or Loss over their estimated useful
lives, from the date they are ready for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic
benefits of assets. Accordingly, at present these are being depreciated on straight line basis.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried
at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Investments

Investments which are made for very short term are classified as Current Investment and are valued at
lower of cost and market value. The diminution in current investments is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss as at Balance Sheet date; appreciation, if any, is recognised at the time of sale.
Investments which are made for long term are classified as Non-current Investments and are valued at
cost.

Impairment

Management periodically assesses using external and internal sources whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. Impairment occurs where the carrying value exceeds the present value
of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal.
The impairment loss to be expensed is determined as the excess of the carrying amount over the higher
of the asset’s net sales price or present value as determined above. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recorded only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss has
been recognised.

Leases
Finance Lease

Assets acquired under finance leases are recognised at the fair value of leased asset at inception of the
lease. However, in cases where the fair value of the leased asset from the standpoint of the lessee
exceeds the present value of minimum lease payments, the asset is recognised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to periods during the lease term
at a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating Lease

Lease payments under operating lease are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straight line basis over the lease period.

Income-tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance
with the Income-tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing
differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period). Income-tax expense is
recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss except that tax expense related to items recognised directly in
reserves is also recognised in those reserves.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, using the
applicable tax rates and laws. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of timing differences between
taxable income and accounting income i.e. differences that originate in one period and are capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding
deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is
unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised
only if there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Defegregtax. assets are
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is
reasonably/ virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

The Company recognises Minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit available as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the Company will be able to recover/set off MAT credit against
income tax liability during the specified period i.e. the period for which MAT credit set off is allowed.
In the year in which Company recognise MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the "Guidance Note
on Accounting for Credit available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income-tax Act,
1961, issued by the Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India", the said asset is created
by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss as "MAT Credit Entitlement". The Company
reviews the "MAT credit entitlement" asset at each reporting date and write down the asset to the extent
the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will be able to recover/set off MAT credit
against income tax liability during the specified period.

Transactions in foreign exchange

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Exchange differences arising due to the differences in the exchange rate between the
transaction date and the date of settlement of any monetary items are taken to the Profit and Loss
Account.

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate prevalent at the date of the Balance Sheet and resultant gain / loss, if any, is recorded as an income
or any expense in the period in which they arise.

Employee benefits

The Company’s obligation towards various employee benefits as per Accounting Standard 15 -
Employee Benefits, prescribed under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 has been
recognised as follows:

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable/ available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the
Profit and Loss Account in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined contribution plans

Contribution to Provident fund is defined contribution plan. Contribution to provident fund is
deposited with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and charged to the Profit and Loss
Account.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such defined benefit plan is
determined, based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

The gratuity plan is funded through a Gratuity Trust administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of
India. The contributions to the Trust are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to
the terms of related obligations.

Long Service Award

The Company’s long service award is defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
yields on Government securities as at Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the
terms of related obligations.

Other long term benefits

Cost of long term benefit by way of accumulating compensated absences arising during the tenure of
the service is calculated taking into account the pattern of availment of leave. In respect of encashment
of leave, the defined benefit is calculated taking into account all types of decrements and qualifying
salary projected up to the assumed date of encashment. The present value of obligations under such
long term benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at year end.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to
the terms of related obligations.

Treatment of actuarial gains and losses

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss Account. Gains or losses
on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized when the curtailment or
settlement occurs.

Provision for reward points redemption

The Company has a reward point program which allows card members to earn points based on spends
through the cards that can be redeemed for cash, gift vouchers and retail merchandize. The Company
makes payments to its reward partners when card members redeem their points and creates provisions
to cover the cost of future reward redemptions. The liability for reward points outstanding as at the
year-end and expected to be redeemed in the future is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity
and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results would be
anti-dilutive.
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Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If
it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balances in bank, and highly liquid
investments with maturity period of three months or less from date of investment

Share Capital

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Authorised
1,000,000,000 (Previous year 1,000,000,000) equity shares of 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
Rs.10 each
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
785,000,002 ( Previous year 785,000,002) equity shares of 7,850,000,020 7,850,000,020
Rs.10 each
Total 7,850,000,020 7,850,000,020

a) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates
471,000,002 (Previous year 471,000,002) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid are held
by State Bank of India, the holding company.

b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
471,000,002 (Previous Year 471,000,002) held by State Bank of

India 60% 60%
314,099,000 (Previous year 314,000,000) held by GE Capital 40% 40%
Mauritius Overseas Investment

Total 100% 100%




SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

c) Reconciliation between opening and closing share capital
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
At the beginning and end of the year 7,850,000,020 7,850,000,020

d) The company has only one class of equity share having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each
holder of the equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the liquidation of the company, the
holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amount exists currently.

Reserve and Surplus

As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
General reserve
At the beginning of the year 47,661,018 47,661,018
Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss Account - -
Less: Utilized During the year - -
At the end of the year 47,661,018 47,661,018
Capital Reserve [(Share based employee compensation cost)]
At the beginning of the year 4,899,968 4,979,368
Add: Share based Employee compensation cost for the year - -
Less: Utilized During the year 764,041 79,400
At the end of the year 4,135,927 4,899,968
Statutory reserve under Section 45-IC of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (Refer to note 36)
Opening balance 2,422,939,460 1,855,138,070
Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss Account @ 20% 780,815,569 567,801,390
At the end of the year 3,203,755,029 2,422,939,460
(Deficit)/ surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,224,890,720 (101,507,307)
Add/ (less): Profit/ (loss) for the year 3,904,077,844 2,839,006,949
Less: Appropriations
Transfer to Statutory Reserves during the year (780,815,569) (567,801,390)
Interim equity dividend (Current year Rs. 1 per share (previous (785,000,002) (785,000,002)
year Rs. 1 per share)
Tax on Interim equity dividend (159,807,530) (159,807,530)
Balance at the end of the year 3,403,345,463 1,224,890,720
Total 6,658,897,437 3,700,391,166




SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Share-Based Compensation (amounts in absolute)

As prescribed by the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and related interpretations, the Company applies the fair
value based method of accounting to account for stock options and restricted stock units issued by
General Electric Company, USA, to the employees of the Company. The fair market value of such
instruments is recognised as an expense over the period in which the related services are received.
Accordingly, fair value of the stock options and restricted stock units is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period of the stock options and stock appreciation rights.

GE Stock options

Certain employees of the Company are entitled to shares of General Electric Company, USA, under an
equity-settled share-based compensation plan. Details of these plans are given below.

The General Electric Company, USA, adopted the 2007 Long-term Incentive Plan (“the option plan”)
under which an initial amount of common stock was reserved for issuance to employees. Options
granted under the Option Plan could be stock options, restricted stock units (RSU) or performance
stock units (PSU). Incentive stock options can be granted only to employees.

The employees’ compensation expense for Stock options and RSU’s during the year ended
31 March 2017 amounts to Rs. (1,898,046) (Previous year Rs. 617,360).

Stock options expire 10 years from the date they are granted and vest over service periods that range
from one to five years. RSUs give the recipients the right to receive shares of the ultimate holding
company upon the lapse of their related restrictions. Restrictions on RSUs lapse in various increments
and at various dates, beginning after three years from date of grant through grantee retirement.
Although the plan permits the ultimate holding company to issue RSUs settleable in cash, it has only
issued RSUs settle able in shares of General Electric Company, USA.

Following stock options were granted during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Type of Dateof  Shares Fair market value Vesting Weighted
arrangement grant granted on the grant date conditions average
(In USD) remaining
contractual life
Stock Options NA - - NA NA




SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Grant date NA
Weighted average share price at grant -
date

Expected volatility for stock options NA
Dividend yield NA
Risk-free interest rate NA
Exercise price of options (3) -

A summary of activity under the Option plan for the year ended 31 March 2017 is given below:

(& Stock Weighted- Weighted- RSU’s  Weighted- Weighted-
options average average (numbers) average average

(numbers)  exercise  remaining exercise  remaining

price contractual price (USD) contractual

(USD) life (years) life (years)

Outstanding, beginning of
the year 22,040 20.17 5.31 - - -

Granted during the year - - - - - -

Forfeited during the year - - - - - -
Exercised during the year 2,850 18.27 - . - -
Deletion: Transferred to

other GE companies 8,040 - - - - -

Addition: Transferred from
other GE companies - - - - - -

Lapsed during the year - - - - - -
Outstanding at the end of
o the year 11,150 21.81 5.22 - - -
-7 Exercisable at the end of
the year 8,650 20.83 4.70 - - -

* As the Guidance Note is applicable for options granted post 1 April 2005, information stated above
is only with effect from such date.

* Risk free interest rates reflect the yield on zero-coupon U.S. Treasury securities. Expected dividend
yields presume a set dividend rate. Expected volatilities are based on implied volatilities from traded
options and historical volatility of our stock.

The fair value of each restricted stock unit is the market price of the stock on the date of Grant.

Following stock options were granted during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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Type of Dateof  Shares Fair market value Vesting Weighted
arrangement grant granted on the grant date conditions average
(In USD) remaining
contractual life
Stock Options NA - - NA NA
Grant date NA
Weighted average share price at grant -
date
Expected volatility for stock options NA
Dividend yield NA
Risk-free interest rate NA
Exercise price of options ($) -

A summary of activity under the Option plan for the year ended 31 March 2016 is given below:

Stock Weighted- Weighted- RSU’s  Weighted- Weighted-
options average average (numbers) average average
(numbers) exercise  remaining exercise  remaining
price contractual price (USD) contractual
(USD) life (years) life (years)
Outstanding, beginning of
the year 23,990 20.12 6.31 - -
Granted during the year - - - - -
Forfeited during the year - - - - -
Exercised during the year 1,200 18.58 - - -
Deletion: Transferred to
other GE companies 750 - - - -
Addition: Transferred from
other GE companies - - - - -
Lapsed during the year - - - - -
Outstanding at the end of
the year 22,040 20.17 5.31 - -
Exercisable at the end of
the year 17,290 19.40 478 - -

* As the Guidance Note is applicable for options granted post 1 April 2005, information stated above

is only with effect from such date.

* Risk free interest rates reflect the yield on zero-coupon U.S. Treasury securities. Expected dividend
yields presume a set dividend rate. Expected volatilities are based on implied volatilities from traded

options and historical volatility of our stock.
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The fair value of each restricted stock unit is the market price of the stock on the date of Grant.

Long term borrowings

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Debentures
9.85% Unsecured non-convertible debenture of Rs 1,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000
each (Redeemable at par in March, 2019)
9.50% Unsecured non-convertible debenture of Rs 1,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000
each (Redeemable at par in September, 2019)
9.95% Unsecured non-convertible debenture of Rs 1,000,000 - 400,000,000
each (Redeemable at par in January, 2018)
9.00% Unsecured non-convertible debenture of Rs 1,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
each (Redeemable at par in November, 2021)
9.65% Unsecured non-convertible debenture of Rs 1,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
each (Redeemable at par in April, 2022)
8.10% Unsecured non-convertible debenture of Rs 1,000,000 2,000,000,000 -
each (Redeemable at par in October, 2023)
5,000,000,000 3,400,000,000
Finance lease obligation (secured by way of hypothecation of
vehicles taken on finance lease) (Refer to note 32) 11,823,705 11,352,183
Total 5,011,823,705 3,411,352,183
Long-term provisions
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences (Refer to Note 41) 27,025,108 15,493,613
Long Service Awards (Refer to Note 42) 6,618,445 3,381,547
Employee Stock option Outstanding (Refer to Note 3) 127,797 2,052,884
33,771,350 20,928,044
Provision for reward points redemption (Refer to Note 27) 415,016,220 406,200,617
Provision on Standard assets [Refer to Note 1(e)] 25,878,713 21,900,960
Provision for other taxes 4,235,604 4,235,604
445,130,536 432,337,181
Total 478,901,886 453,265,225
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Short-term borrowings

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Secured working capital loans
'From banks (Related Parties)'? 1,953,188,220 28,333,935,594
Secured Commercial papers-From Bank( Related Parties)'*
Face Value 70,500,000,000
Less: Unexpired Discount 855,652,335
69,644,347,665 23,102,789,516
Unsecured Commercial papers from other®
Face Value 5,500,000,000
Less: Unexpired Discount 37.687.058
5,462,312,942 4,433,197,561
Total 77,059,848,827 55,869,922,671
'Secured by:

a) Primary Security - First Charge over the entire Current Assets of the Company (present & future),

b) Collateral Security- First Charge on entire Fixed Assets of the Company (present and future),

excluding vehicles financed by other institutions,

2 Interest rate on working capital loan is @ 8.90% p.a. and for commercial paper ranges from 6.60% to

8.50%. p.a.
Trade Payables
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Sundry Creditors
a) tota‘l outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 10,699,729 3,339,268
enterprises
b) totgl outstanding dues of 'credltors other than micro 597.779.546 372.048.943
enterprises and small enterprises
608,479,275 376,288,211
Sundry Creditors - Payable to related party (Refer to Note 31) 579,092,017 482,659,815
Total 1,187,571,292 858,948,026

*Refer Note No. 35 for disclosure of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise as per MSMED Act 2006.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Other current liabilities

As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Interest accrued but not due on debentures 146,137,534 73,099,394
Finance lease obligation (secured by way of hypothecation of
vehicles taken on fginance lease) (Reyfer to Note 32) 7,816,974 6,076,199
9.95% Unsecured non-convertible debenture of Rs 1,000,000
each (Redeemable at par in January, 2018) 400,000,000 )
Unamortised membership fees 1,281,731,361 841,241,680
Other liabilities* 2,740,202,061 1,854,000,542
Statutory liabilities 152,365,793 95,640,927
Payable for Capital expenditure 1,782,745 -
Total 4,730,036,468 2,870,058,742

* Includes Rs. 1,871,328,558/- (Previous Year Rs. 1,199,947,224/-) payable to Network Partners.

Short-term provisions

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer to Note 40) 31,987,063 3,457,738
Compensated absences (Refer to Note 41) 7,691,262 7,693,915
Long Service Awards (Refer to Note 42) 1,823,444 1,324,168
Employee Stock option Outstanding (Refer to Note 3) 1,199,951 408,869
Bonus & Incentive Payable 90,184,109 67,963,138
132,885,829 80,847,828
Provision for reward points redemption (Refer to Note 27) 1,885,559,384 1,126,088,290
Provision on Standard assets [Refer to Note 1(e)] 378,452,080 268,069,769
Provision for doubtful debts 435,878,085 369,319,764
Provision for expenses 1,472,851,516 934,799,798
Provision for expenses - Related Party (Refer to Note 31) 63,014,693 65,295,857
Interim equity dividend 785,000,002 785,000,002
Provision for tax on interim equity dividend 159,807,530 159,807,530
5,180,563,290 3,708,381,010
Total 5,313,449,119 3,789,228,838
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

11. Deferred taxation

The break-up of the tax impact of deferred tax assets/liabilities and reconciliation of current year deferred tax
charge as at 31 March 2017 is as follows:

6

Particulars As at 31 March As at 31 March
2017 2016
Deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts 292,707,238 232,247,963
Staff benefits & Stat. Dues 16,162,099 35,156,591
Provision for Expenses 531,532,668 346,113,103
Membership Fees & Subvention 443,581,589 291,136,921
Depreciation net of Lease Adjsutment 900,445 545,392
Total deferred tax assets 1,284,884,039 905,199,970
Deferred tax liabilities:
Debenture issue expenses 3,818,872 3,167,003
Total deferred tax liabilities 3,818,872 3,167,003
Net deferred tax asset 1,281,065,167 902,032,967
12. Long-term loans and advances
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 24,511,302 13,521,925
Unsecured, considered doubtful - 100,000
24,511,302 13,621,925
Less: Provision for doubtful security deposits - (100,000)
24,511,302 13,521,925
Loans and advances to customers
S.ecure.d Considered good ( Secured by Lien on Fixed deposits & 122,111,536 126,896,570
financial gurantee)
Unsecured, considered good 6,347,566,634 5,348,343,481
6,469,678,170 5,475,240,051
Other loans and advances
Advance tax including tax deducted at source 277,592,002 284,439,324
MAT credit receivable - 148,226,129
277,592,002 432,665,453
Total 6,771,781,474 5,921,427,429
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Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Non-Current Investment

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Unquoted Equity Shares
Investment in SBI Foundation 10,010 -
(1,001 equity shares of Rs.10 each)
Total 10,010 -
Other non-current assets
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Fixed Deposits with maturity greater than 12 months (under 200,000 200,000
Lien for guarantees issued to Tax Authorities)
Total 200,000 200,000
Current Investment

During the year ending 31% March, 2017, the Company has purchased and sold the units of Mutual Funds,

the details of which are as follows:

Fund Name Units Purchase Amount Sale Amount

Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 2,817,957 4,950,000,000 4,952,227,804
HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 1,075,733 3,300,000,000 3,301,059,022
ICICI Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 12,789,601 2,970,000,000 2,970,765,067
SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 590,032 1,480,000,000 1,480,285,957
Total 17,273,323 12,700,000,000 12,704,337,850

The details of units purchased and sold during the previous year ending 31* March, 2016 are as follows:

Fund Name Units Purchase Amount Sale Amount

Axis Mutual Fund Investment 6,102 10,000,000 10,008,077
HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 37,609 110,000,000 110,110,620
ICICI Prudential Liquid - Direct Plan - Growth 7,151,052 1,580,000,000 1,580,360,751
SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 31,177 100,000,000 100,123,779
SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 3,384,955 7,720,000,000 7,724,523,034
SBI Ultra Short Term Debt Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 80,443 150,000,000 150,115,861
Total 10,691,338 9,670,000,000 9,675,242,122
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Cash and bank balances

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks in Current accounts* : 73,028,189 134,098,369
Funds 1n‘trans1t (Lying in nodal account of 1,674,190.445 1,537,303,189
intermediatery/payment gateway aggregator)
1,747,218,634 1,671,401,558
Other bank balances
Earmarked balances with bank 1,082,244,593 1,073,010,153
Total 2,829,463,227 2,744,411,711
* It includes balance with related parties (Refer note no. 31).
Short-term loans and advances
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Loans & advances to Customers
Secured Considered good ( Secured by Lien on Fixed deposits & 2.694.559,384 1,679,066.514

financial gurantee)

Unsecured, considered good 91,918,460,665 65,338,375,761
Unsecured, considered doubtful 1,677,475,055 1,464,543,104
96,290,495,104 68,481,985,379
Other Advances
To Vendors ( Unsecured, considered good) 23,842,890 10,962,467
To Vendors ( Unsecured, considered doubtful) 50,224 1,126,016
Prepaid expenses 62,595,469 45,179,955
86,488,583 57,268,438
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (50,224) (1,126,016)
Total 96,376,933,463 68,538,127,801
Other current assets
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated
Other receivable 934,703,772 611,750,028
Service tax recoverable* 60,229,618 64,569,652
Other receivable, considered doubtful 5,520,019 10,565,215
1,000,453,409 686,884,895
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (5,520,019) (10,565,215)
Total 994,933,390 676,319,680

*Service tax recoverable includes: - Pre-deposit for Appeal Rs 1,232,209 (Previous year Rs 1,180,650)
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Revenue from Operations

For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31st March 2017 31 March 2016
Income from membership fees and services 13,183,114,967 9,339,572,989
Interest income 17,677,193,873 13,803,497,598
Service Charges 535,339,138 221,870,826
Business development incentive income 990,820,778 503,275,087
Total 32,386,468,756 23,868,216,500
Other income
For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31st March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit on sale of Investment 4,337,850 5,242,121
Bad Debts Recovered 1,218,360,128 957,383,808
Profit on sale of fixed assets 93,945 189,846
Gain/(Loss) on exchange fluctuation 3,830,105 (3,972,403)
Interest Income -Income tax & Service tax refund and FD Interest 59,095 46,964,960
Liabilities / Provision written back 21,742,653 43,820,881
Total 1,248,423,776 1,049,629,213
Employee benefit expenses
For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31st March 2017 31 March 2016
Salaries and other allowances 868,028,694 710,614,977
Employee stock option expense (Refer to Note 3) (1,898,046) 617,360
Staff welfare expenses 78,240,524 37,170,642
Contribution to provident fund 34,654,344 30,124,767
Contribution to other funds 32,357,701 13,165,516
Total 1,011,383,217 791,693,262

*Employee benefit expenses includes year end provision for FY 2016-2017 amounting to Rs. 166,657,179
and reversal of year end provision for FY 2015-2016 amounting to Rs. 101,775,872 at an aggregate level.

Finance cost

For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31st March 2017 31 March 2016
Interest on Debentures 396,327,318 236,576,927
Interest on Working Capital loans (Secured) 156,738,406 161,741,071
Discounting charges on Commercial papers (Secured) 4,275,613,149 3,623,373,077
Discounting charges on Commercial papers (Unsecured) 386,755,380 281,524,561
Other Interest 410,996 9,149
Total 5,215,845,249 4,303,224,785
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23.

SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Operating and other expenses*

For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31st March 2017 31 March 2016

Consumption of plastic cards 193,411,095 171,877,262
Rent and hire charges 68,394,927 60,272,435
Travelling and conveyance 94,528,564 75,798,579
Cash advance service charges 17,653,880 8,097,150
Telephone, fax and postage 279,777,519 222,374,591
VISA / Master Card transaction charges 1,358,935,120 975,158,817
Advertisement 264,796,874 248,747,389
Sales Promotion 6,400,037,924 3,622,628,256
Insurance expense 15,525,426 15,289,425
Professional & Consulting fees 459,325,105 344,447,650
Processing Charges 4,620,620,353 3,910,782,737
Rates and taxes 7,918,669 11,137,925
Collection & Recovery charges 1,039,846,986 861,075,219
Repairs and maintenance-others 48,357,919 39,630,683
Auditor's remuneration (Refer to Note 26) 3,455,000 3,455,000
Power and fuel 25,152,852 23,891,123
Printing, stationery and office supplies 196,439,506 135,910,317
Royalty Expenses 78,081,557 56,780,139
Reward points redemption 2,250,423,386 1,580,537,283
Surcharge Waiver to Customer 360,578,222 272,011,342
Bank & Borrowing related charges 67,377,948 54,831,331
Other Advances written off / provision for doubtful advances 15,208,627 3,406,643
Other Expenses 3,932,235 9,405,724
Total 17,869,779,694 12,707,547,020

* QOperating & other expenses includes year end provision for FY 2016-17 amounting to Rs. 3,836,441,813
(includes Rs 2,300,575,604 for Reward redemption & Rs 1,535,866,209 for Other Operating expense) and
reversal of year end provision for FY 2015-16 amounting to Rs 2,532,384,561 (includes Rs 1,532,288,907
for Reward redemption & Rs. 1,000,095,655 for Other Operating expense).
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

24. Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has incurred expenditure in respect of
corporate social responsibility as follows:

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year: - Rs 70,389,782 (Previous year
46,402,762).

(b) Amount spent during the year on:

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars In Cash Yet.to be paid In Cash Yet-to be paid
in cash in cash
(i) Construction/Acquisition of Assets - - - -
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 170,389,782 - 46,402,762 -
Total 70,389,782 - 46,402,762 -

25. Bad debts written off/Provision for doubtful debts

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Bad debts written off 3,291,541,226 2,522,491,965
Provision for standand assets 114,360,064 57,772,046
Provision for restructured standard assets (44,345,101) (8,339,199)
Provision for doubtful advances 93,136,311 107,370,139
Provision for fraud movement 17,767,111 (555,691)
3,472,459,611 2,678,739,260
26. Auditors’ remuneration (excluding service tax)
Professional fee includes auditors’ remuneration as follows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Audit fees 2,200,000 2,200,000
Quarterly Limited Review fees 450,000 450,000
Tax audit fees 250,000 250,000
Fee for other services 350,000 350,000
Reimbursement of expenses 205,000 205,000
Total 3,455,000 3,455,000
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27.

28.

SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Movement of provision for reward points redemption and legal cases in accordance with Accounting
Standard 29; Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets is as under:

Reward Points Movement:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
a. Provision at the beginning of the year* 1,532,288,907 932,981,912
b. Additions made during the year 2,247,006,455 1,336,373,391
c. Interest Cost for the period 68,406,752 45,597,295
d. Amount redeemed/Paid during the year (1,482,136,689) (981,230,089)
e. Amounts lapsed during the year (533,453,496) (441,401,574)
f. Actuarial Gain / (Loss) 437,553,374 559,319,293
g, Movement on account of unpaid vendor liability 30,910,301 80,648,679
h. Provision at the end of the year* (a+b+c+d+e+f+g) 2,300,575,604 1,532,288,907

* Provision for reward points as at 31 March 2017 of Rs. 2,300,575,604 (previous year Rs. 1,532,288,907)
includes provision as per actuarial valuation of Rs. 2,143,415,472 (previous year Rs. 1,406,039,075) and
provision for unpaid claims of Rs. 157,160,132(previous year Rs. 126,249,831)

Legal Claims:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
_ 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
a. Provision at the beginning of the year 2,656,037 1,591,695
b. Additions / (Reduction) made during the year (1,009,011) 2,091,505
c. Amount Paid during the year 461,401 1,027,163
d. Provision at the end of the year (a+b-c) 1,185,625 2,656,037

Segment Reporting

In the opinion of the management, there is only one reportable segment (“Credit Cards”) as envisaged by AS
17 “Segment reporting”, specified under section 133 of the Companies act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. Further, the economic environment in which the Company operates is
significantly similar and not subject to materially different risks and rewards.

Accordingly, as the Company operates in a single business and geographical segment, the reporting
requirements for primary and secondary disclosures prescribed by Accounting Standard - 17 are not required

to be given.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

29. Income and expenditure in foreign currency
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)
Network and other service charges 939,501,367 704,983,769
Others 46,936,095 65,270,975
Income in foreign currency (on accrual basis)
Business development incentive & Interchange income 1,041,003,974 529,347,672
a 30. Dividend to be remitted in foreign currency
For the year ended|For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number of equity shares held on which Interim dividend is to be
remitted 314,000,000 314,000,000
Period to which Interim dividend relates to FY 2016-17 FY 2015-16
Number of non-resident shareholders 1 1
Amount to be remitted 314,000,000 314,000,000
31. Related party disclosures
List of parties who have controlling interest or with whom transactions have taken place during the year.
a. List of related parties

i. Holding Entity

O .

ii Joint venture

State Bank of India

e GE Capital Corporation, USA
iil.
¢ GE Capital Mauritius Overseas Investments
iv.  Fellow subsidiaries and entities
¢ State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur
e State Bank of Hyderabad
e State Bank of Mysore
e State Bank of Patiala
o State Bank of Travancore

¢ SBI Capital Markets Ltd
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

e SBICAP Securities Ltd

e SBICAP Trustee Company Ltd

e SBICAPS Ventures Ltd

o SBIDFHI Ltd

e SBI Mutual Fund Trustee Company Pvt Ltd

¢ SBI Global Factors Ltd

¢ SBI Pension Funds Pvt Ltd

e SBI-SG Global Securities Services Pvt. Ltd

¢ SBI General Insurance Company Ltd

e SBI Payment Services Pvt. Ltd.

e SBI Funds Management Pvt Ltd

e SBI Funds Management (International) Private Ltd
e SBI Life Insurance Company Ltd

o SBI Infra Management Solutions Private Limited

° .State Bank of India (Canada)

o State Bank of India (California)

e SBI (Mauritius) Ltd

e PT Bank SBI Indonesia

o Bank SBI Botswana Ltd

e SBICAP (UK) Ltd

e Commercial Indo Bank Llc , Moscow

e Nepal SBI Bank Ltd.

e Nepal S.B.I Merchant Banking Public Limited

e SBICAP (Singapore) Ltd

e C - Edge Technologies Ltd

e SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Management Pvt. Ltd.
e SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Trustee Pvt. Ltd

e Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Management Pte. Ltd.
e Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Trustee Ltd.

o Oman India Joint Investment Fund — Trustee Company Pvt. Ltd.
e Oman India Joint Investment Fund — Management Company Pvt. Ltd.
e SBI Servicos Limitada, Brazil

e Jio Payments Bank Ltd

¢ SBI Foundation (Not for profit Company)
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

V. Entity under common significant influence

o GE Capital Business Process Management Services Private Limited
e GE India Industrial Private Limited
e Wipro GE Healthcare Private Limited

VL. Key management personnel
e Mr. Vijay Jasuja, Chief Executive Officer
e Mr Digmanu Gupta, Chief Financial Officer (Till 9-Sep-2016)
(“} e Mr. Praveen Kumar Singh, Chief Financial Officer (From 1-November-2016)

o Ms. Payal Mittal, Company Secretary

25




9¢

$10°288°1 TS0°0SS SST T PEL96T°0T - 806'T1L6E preday] sOUBAPY 2 SUBO]
TTET06°T LY 6LIVLI‘T €80°6L£°0T - $S9'8€T LE sjusunsn(pe J9YI0 puB UIAIT SIOUBAPY % SUBO]
} - - - LSS180°8L sosuadxa Aehoy
B - - - 000°00T pormew 1sodap paxLy
) ; - - 000°002 apeuws 1sodo(] paxIg
- - - 000°000¥1¢€ 00°000° 1LY Pred puspiAIlq
- - 000°000°08%°1 - - predal sjusunsaAU]
- - 010°010°08%'1 - - OpBW SJUSUWISIAUL
- - LS6°S8T - - SIUSUNSIAUT UO SWIOdU]
} - - - 6SY'8TLTLS STE predas sSuimoiog
. - - - €79°18T 805 1¥€ opew sSurmonog
B - - - CCSISETEY' Y soSIeyo 9oueUL]
- - - - $60°6S nsodop paxIJ uo swodu] 1S3INU]
EVSTSHET - - - - (uoneIoUNWAI [eUSTEURIA) IS0 [PUUOSIA]
- - 6cETCl - - POAISO9Y UOISSTUILIO))
- - 864605 - 612°€19°0€ preJ UOISSTUILIOD) 29 $93 ‘s981ey0 ueg
- 89€79T°9 - 000°S0€°0T - x3PBUI SUOTIBOO[[E 180
- €5€'079°079'Y - - - pred sogreyo Sursseo0id
- 661°160°S8 GL819T'T ¥6S°8ST°1 GE9'8LYEE xPIATIII SUOIIBIO[[E 150D
- - £9E°06L Y1 - 080°TOL'8¥E (S9ATJUS0UT) UOTOUI0Id SI[ES PUE JUIWISTIIOADY
LT-910C L1-9107 LT-910¢ LT-910¢ LT-910C 1834 3y} SuLInp suopdEBSULI], B
Jouanpyul
[puuosiag jueoyrudis sennud
juowdSeuRA uowrwiod PUE SILIBIPISqNS
L3y Japun Apuy Mo JAIMJUI A Juiof LAnuy Suipjoy siemoney

®

LT0T YPIBIAl € PApUd Jed X sanaed pajepa yiim Surpuejsino sadue[eq/suotjoesuel ], ‘®

(seadny uerpuj ul SHUNOWIE [[V)
TALIATT ALVATEd STOIAYAS INAWAVd ANV SA4VO 14S

O

S)unodde 03 sajou pue sapijod Sununodroe JuedYIUSIS

SjuaW)L)S [eIoueulj ) Jo Jed SUIULIO) SIJON



. (SLNVINNODOY
w Q3¥314VHD Le

“PanSSI SPIEd 1IPII0 UO /[T YOTB [ € e Se SuIpueIsino sooue[eq puo-1eak Juasa1dol SUNOUTE ISIYL, s
*L10T UPIBIN T€ 18 Se SuIpue)sino saouefeq pus-IedA JuasaIdol SJUNOUTe 3SYL, s s

-sosuadya 1otpo pue Sunerado Jo swra aur] asuadxa 9AN0adsal dy) ur paisnipe /Papnioul AT SJUNOWE Y, «

- - 661789 - 5 2]1qRI9A099Y 19YI0
- - 010°01 - - SJUQUIISIAUT
- - - - 000°00¢ $19SSB JUALIND Uou I3Y10
I8L18 858 VC6V6 €¥0°90¢°T - LEI'TTIT xxxSIOUBAPY 79 SUBOT]
- - €98°LEL'ST - 780°O¥L €8E’T ++(1RIPIOA0 Joog)/saoueled Yueq % UseD
- % - - $88GEC L6S TL s3uimoxog
B - - 000000 ¥1€ T00°000°TLY 91qeAed puapiAld
- €61°LT8°68Y 8Y9'vET'S 601°L09°C LOS*S9L ST SINI[IQRI] JOYIO % sa[qeded SpeiL
puyq Ieax je SurpueysinQ s3dueeq °q
[PuuosIdg aouanpyur T —
juowSeue]y  JUBIIJIUBIS o JPIMuIA Juiof  Auedwo)) Swipjo siemonIed
A3y Jopun Luy motRd

s)unodde 03 sajou pue sapijod Sununodrde juedyIUSIS
SpudWwaYE)S [erdueury 3y) Jo jaed Sururio} sa)oN

(seadny] uelpu] ul sUNOWE [[v)
QALIAI'T ALVARI SADIAYAS INFWAVd ANV SAAVO I4S

p—

© O



G | SINVINNODOY | o

G3Y¥ILYVHD

8¢
S9S°LOL TTT086°9¢ SS9T18°0C - ¥26°S09°0Y predoy sooueApY 29 SUBO]
6S8°L09 890°698°LE 906°01L°61 - 1223591044 sjudunsnipe 19410 pue USAIS SIOUBAPY % SUEO]
) - - - 6£1°08L°9S sasuadxa Kijjehoy
- - - - - painjewr j1sodop paxij
- - - - = opew y1soda(q paxi
- - - - = nsodap pax1J uo swooduy JSIIANU]
- - - 000°000°LST 100°005°S€ET pred puspralqg
- - 000°000°0L6°L - - predal sjusunsaAuy
- - 000°000°0L6°L - - opew SJUSUISIAU]
- - YLYTILY - - SJUSUIISIAUL UO JUIOIU]
. N B - 9ZH'c08°801°16C predar sSuimosiog
. - - - 089°0£€°STT 86T opew sSuimonog
8YIVIT'S8LE sodIeyo douBuL]
LY919TET - - - - (uoneIsunural [eLIRSEUBIA]) 1S0)) [SUUOSIS]
- - YLS‘8T6°T - - POAI209Y UOISSIUIIO))
- - 169°¢8¥ - £78°L60°0€ pred UOISSTUIIO)) 2 $39§ ‘Sa3Ieyd yuegq
- 116°€8€°S - - - #,,9PBW SUOTIBOO[[E 1S0))
- LELTIL'OTI6'E - - - pred sagreys Surssaoold
- 8Y6°T11°9T 000°1P€ (8LL'LET'T) WTs69° 0y +P3AI3021 SUOIIBDO[[B 150D
- - 679°LLYTT - €9€‘86L 67T (seanuaour) uonowoxd so[es PUE JUSWASILISAPY
91-S10C 91-S10¢C 91-S10C 91-S10¢ 91-S10¢ JTeak oy Sulnp SUOHIESURI], B
[PuuosIdg jueoriudis  (f 2J0N) SNIUI
juouraSeury uowruIod pue SaLIBIpISqNS
Koy Japun Kpuy Mo J2INJUdA Jurof fnuy Suipjoyg sigmonIeg

9107 Y2IBA [€ PopPud Jea X sanaed pajejpa yim SuIpue)sino sadue[eq/suorjoesuel ], ‘q
sjunodde 0} sajou pue sapijod Sununodoe yuedludIg

SJUIUIIL)S [eIouBULj 9Y) Jo Jaed Sururiof sajoN

(s9adny uelpuy ui sjunouie {y)
QALIAT'T ALVAIId SHOIAYES INHWAVI ANV STV 14S

O O



| SINYINNODDY o)

Q3Y3LHVHD

6¢

"PasIdAAL COmwm>OHQ S$S90X9 S§}O3[JaI1 junouwre 0>ﬁmwuz #

“PANSSI SPIRD JIPAID UO 9T YOTeAl [ ¢ 18 Se SUIPuISINO $30UR[eq PUI-IedK Judsa1dar SYUNOUIE ISIYT, s

‘9107 YoTeN [ 1e St SuIpueIsIno saoue[eq pus-Ieak Juasa1dol SJUNOUIe ISIYT, s

‘sasuadxa 1o10 pue Sunerado jo swran aur] asuadxo 9Anoadsar oy ur paysnfpe /papn[our oI SUNOWE YT, 4

- - 0LT01 - 006°tS8 9[qeIoA003Y IayI0
- - - - 000°00C §3asSse JUILIND uou 1910
¥69°Sy 90T‘66T°€ ¥69°€TT'1 - 168760y #x%SIOUBAPY 7p SUBOT]
- - 0TET0E’61 - LLS'8S6°1TS'T ++(1JRIPIOAO Yoog)/sddur[ed Jueq % YseD
- - - - 0T1°GTLOEV' IS s3uimoriog
- - - 000°000°v1€ 700°000°1LY ajqeAed PUSPIAI]
- £68°C6C°TCY LOV'pES'T TIv'8E9°E €ILTS6TTI sonIIqel] PYIQ % So[qeAed SpelL
puq Ieax je Suipuejsing saduejeq 'q
[PUUO0SIdg Jouanpur
juowdSeueyy  JUBHIUBIS saLIBIpISqNS
A3y Jopun Anuy MO[_PA JamuaA juiof  Aueduo)) Suipjofy siemonaIeg
s)unodJe 03 sajou pue sapijod Sununodde JuLdYUSIS
sjudwd)els [eIouRUL) 3Y) Jo Jed Sururioy sajoN
(ssadny uerpuj w1 sjunowre |y)
AALTATT ALVAIId SADIAYAS INAWAVdA ANV SAAVO 14S
\\
< O



@)

SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Annexure I to Note 31

Transactions/Balances Outstanding with Fellow Subsidiaries (Parties constituting 10% or more

in each category)

a. Transactions during the year

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
Investments made
SBI Funds Management Pvt Limited 1,480,000,000 7,970,000,000
Investments repaid
SBI Funds Management Pvt Limited 1,480,000,000 7,970,000,000
Loans & Advances given
Others - 19,710,906
Loans & Advances Repaid
Others - 20,811,655
b. Balances Outstanding at Year End
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016
Loans and Advances
Others 1,306,043 1,223,694
Investment
SBI Foundation 10,010 -
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

32. Finance lease obligations

The Company has acquired vehicles on finance lease during current and earlier years. The term for
lease is between 3-5 years with monthly equated instalments beginning from the month subsequent to
the commencement of the lease. The present value of total minimum lease payment liability as at 31
March 2017 is Rs. 19,640,679. Rate of interest for finance lease obligation (vehicles) is varying

between 12.35% to 13.25%.

The maturity profile of the finance lease obligation as at 31% March 2017 is as follows:

Total minimum Present value of
. lease payments minimum lease
Particulars outstanding at Interest payments as at
31 March 2017 31 March 2017

Due within one year 10,029,807 2,212,833 7,816,974

Due later than one year and not later than five

years 13,573,657 1,749,952 11,823,705

23,603,464 3,962,785 19,640,679

The present value of total minimum lease payment liability as at 31 March 2016 was
Rs. 17,428,382. The maturity profile of the finance lease obligation as at 31 March 2016 was as

follows:
Total minimum Present value of
. lease payments minimum lease
Particulars outstanding at Interest payments as at
31 March 2016 31 March 2016
Due within one year 8,143,233 2,067,034 6,076,199
Due later than one year and not later than five
years 13,023,473 1,671,290 11,352,183
21,166,706 3,738,324 17,428,382

Operating Lease obligations:

The Company has taken office premises on lease. Operating lease rentals recognised during the year

were Rs 55,108,443 (previous year Rs. 50,299,161). The total of the future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st Mar-17 31st Mar-16
Not later than one year 41,425,110 49,293,301
Later than one year but not later than five years 56,552,488 45,612,153
Later than five years 11,106,631 6,989,751
Total 109,084,229 101,895,205

31

\
» N

WNOe
S %
S @
E :
CHART
Olac OUNEZFD o

4, B

v
Vil

O




SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

33.  Earnings/ (loss) per equity share

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
a. Net Profit After Tax 3,904,077,844 2,839,006,949
' We.lghted average of r.lumber of equity shares used in computing 785,000,002 785,000,002
basic and diluted earnings per share
c. Basic and diluted earning per share (a/b) 497 3.62

34. Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents
as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(‘Act’). Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be
contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the
domestic and international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the
financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest before the due date for filing of return
under the Act. The management is of the opinion that its domestic and international transactions are
at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements,
particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

35. The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26
August 2008 which recommends that Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their
correspondence with their customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum number as allocated after filing
of the Memorandum. Based on information received and available with the Company, there are no
amounts required to be disclosed in relation to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March 2017 and
31 March 2016 except the amount disclosed in Trade payable in note 7.

36. Contingent liabilities

1) Based on Demand notices received from the income-tax department & service tax authorities, the
Company is contingently liable for Rs. 251,901,311 (Previous year Rs. 232,669,463), against
which it had deposited an amount of Rs. 1,232,209 (Previous year Rs. 1,180,650). The Company
has challenged these demands of the tax authorities. While the ultimate outcome of the above-
mentioned appeals cannot be ascertained at this time, based on current knowledge of the
applicable law, management believes that these laws suits should not have a material adverse
affect on the Company’s financial statements or business operations. Accordingly, no provision
has been made in the books of account.

2) Estimated claims against the Company which arise in the ordinary course of business not
acknowledged as debt. Such claims as at 31 March 2017 are Rs. 54,186,956 (Previous year Rs.

42,002,175).

37. Certain show cause notices relating to indirect taxes matters amounting to Rs. 300,820,202 (previous
year Rs. 306,167,655) and interest as applicable, have neither been acknowledged as claims nor
acknowledged as contingent liabilities. Based on internal assessment and discussion with tax
advisors, the Company is of the view that the possibility of any of these tax demands materializing is
remote.

38.  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and provided for (net
of advances) amounted to Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. Nil).
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

39. During the year ended 31* March 2017 the company appropriated Rs 780,815,569 (previous year Rs.
567,801,390) towards the Statutory Reserve (Reserve Fund) in accordance with Section 45-IC of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

40. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting standard 15 (Revised) — Employee benefits

(A) The contribution made to various statutory funds is recognized as expense and included in

“Employee benefit expenses” in the statement of profit & loss. The details are as follows:

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Provident Fund 34,654,344 30,124,767
Employee State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) - 34,323
Labour Welfare Fund 62,806 62,131
Total 34,717,150 30,221,221

(B) The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under AS-15 (revised),

“Employee Benefits” as at 31 March 2017:

Reconciliation of benefit obligations & plan assets for the period

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Opening defined benefit obligation 60,070,839 48,309,748
Current service cost 9,345,537 7,570,426
Interest cost 4,797,464 3,960,189
Actuarial losses / (Gain) 22,521,745 5,899,899
Liabilities Assumed on Acquistion / (Settled
on Divestiture) - -
Benefits paid (4,876,314) (5,669,423)
Closing defined benefit obligation 91,859,271 60,070,839
Change in the fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 56,613,101 46,577,120
Expected return on plan assets 5,200,197 4,237,137
Actuarial gains / (losses) (522,514) 333,754
Contributions by employer 3,457,738 11,134,513
Benefits paid (4,876,314) (5,669,423)
Closing fair value of plan assets 59,872,208 56,613,101

Reconciliation of present value of the obligations and the fair value of the plan asset

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Present value of funded obligations 91,859,271 60,070,839
Fair value of plan assets (59,872,208) (56,613,101)
Net asset/liability 31,987,063 3,457,738
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Gratuity Cost for the period

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Current service cost 9,345,537 7,570,426
Interest cost 4,797,464 3,960,189
Expected return on plan assets (5,200,197) (4,237,137)
Net actuarial losses / (gains) recognized in
year 23,044,259 5,566,145
Net gratuity cost 31,987,063 12,859,623
s Actual return on plan assets 4,677,683 4,570,891
Experience adjustments
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Defined benefit obligation 91,859,271 60,070,839
Plan assets 59,872,208 56,613,101
Surplus / (Deficit) (31,987,063) (3,457,738)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 9,971,521 3,900,544
Experience adjustments on plan assets (522,214) 333,754
100% of the plan assets are with the Insurer managed funds.
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2016
Discount rate 7.00% per annum| 7.60% per annum
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 7.50% per annum| 9.40% per annum
C) Salary Escalation Rate 10.50% per annum| 10.50% per annum

Investment details of the plan assets

100% of the plan assets are with the Insurer managed funds.

The estimate of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Demographic assumptions

a) Retirement Age: The employees of the Company are assumed to retire at the age of 60 years.

b) Mortality: Published rates under the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ult Table. Rates of
Indian Assured Lives Mortality table at specimen ages are as shown below:

Age (Years) Rates

18 0.000800

. 23 0.000961
© 28 0.001017
33 0.001164

38 0.001549

43 0.002350

48 0.003983

53 0.006643

58 0.009944

¢) Leaving Service: A withdrawal rate of 14% p.a. has been assumed at all ages in this valuation.
d) Disability: Leaving service due to disability is included in the provision made for all causes of leaving

service (paragraph (c) above).

41. Compensated absences

An actuarial valuation of compensated absences has been carried out by an independent actuary on

) the basis of the following assumptions:
Assumptions
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Discount rate 7.00% per annum| 7.60% per annum
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 7.50% per annum| 9.40% per annum
Salary Escalation Rate 10.50% per annum | 10.50% per annum

The defined benefit obligation of compensated absences in respect of employees of the Company as
at 31 March 2017 amounts to Rs. 34,716,370 (previous year Rs. 23,187,528).

Demographic assumptions

a) Retirement Age: The employees of the Company are assumed to retire at the age of 60 years.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

b) Mortality: Published rates under the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ult Table. Rates of
Indian Assured Lives Mortality table at specimen ages are as shown below:

Age (Years) Rates

18 0.000800

23 0.000961

28 0.001017

33 0.001164

38 0.001549

_ 43 0.002350
O 48 0.003983
53 0.006643

58 0.009944

¢) Leaving Service: A withdrawal rate of 14% p.a. has been assumed at all ages in this valuation.

d) Leave Availment Pattern: Based on the data provided the pattern of availment of leave by employee
if the company in the past, it has been assumed by actuary that 5% of leave balance as at the valuation
date and each subsequent year following the valuation date is availed by the employee. The balance
leave is assumed to be available for encashment on separation from the Company.

e) Disability: Leaving service due to disability is included in the provision made for all causes of leaving
service. (paragraph c above)

42. Long Service Awards

Actuarial Valuation for Long Service Awards to employees has been carried out by an independent
on the basis of following assumptions:

& Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Discount rate 7.00% per annum| 7.60% per annum
Increase in Cost of Award 0.00% per annum| 0.00% per annum

a) Discount Rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian
government securities as at 31" March 2017 for the estimated term of the obligations.

b) Increase in Cost of Award: The increase in cost of award is in line with the long-term
assumption of price inflation as at the balance sheet date.

DEMOGRAPHIC ASSUMPTIONS AT THE VALUATION DATE:

¢) Retirement Age: The employees of the Company are assumed to retire at the age of 60 years
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

d) Mortality: Published rates under the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ult table.
Rates of Indian Assured Lives Mortality table at specimen ages are as shown below:

Age (Years) Rates
18 0.000800
23 0.000961
28 0.001017
33 0.001164
38 0.001549
43 0.002350
48 0.003983
53 0.006643-
58 0.009944

e) Leaving Service: We have assumed 14% per annum withdrawal rate at all ages in this
valuation.

f) Disability: Leaving service due to disability is included in the provision made for all causes of
leaving service (paragraph (€) above).

The Defined benefit obligation for Long service awards in respect of employees of the Company as at
31 March 2017 is Rs 8,441,889 (previous year Rs 4,705,715).

Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

The Company"‘s exposure in respect of foreign currency denominated assets not hedged as on 31
March 2017 by derivative instruments or otherwise is USD 394,967 (Rs. 25,609,107) [ Previous year
USD 536,537 (Rs. 35,603,293)]. Similar amount for Payable & other liabilities is USD 2,357,219 (Rs.
152,838,809) [Previous year USD 1,597,998 (Rs. 105,794,570) '

In respect of accounts receivables, the Company is regularly generating and dispatching customer
statements on periodic interval wherever transactions or outstanding are there. In case of disputes with
regard to billing, there is a process of resolution and adjustments are carried out on regular basis.
Moreover, in respect of accounts payable, the Company has a process of receiving regular balance
confirmation from its vendors. The balances are reconciled with the balance confirmation received and
discrepancies, if any are accounted on regular basis. For the year end balances of Account
Receivables, Account Payables and Loans & Advances, the management is of the opinion that
adjustments, if any required through the above mentioned process, will not have any material impact
on the financials of the company.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

The Company has also reclassified the previous year figures in accordance with the requirements
applicable in the current year.

Schedule to Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company as required in terms of Paragraph 13
of Non- Banking Financial Companies (non-deposit accepting or holding) Prudential Norms (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2007:

O

Particulars As at As at
Liabilities side: 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Loans and advances availed by the NBFC’s Amount Amount
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not . Amount overdue . Amount overdue
paid: outstanding outstanding
(a) Debentures : Secured
: Unsecured 5,546,137,534 3,473,099,394
(Other than falling within the meaning of
public deposits)
(b) Deferred Credits
! (c) Term Loans
d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(e) Commercial Paper 75,106,660,607 27,535,987,077
() Other Loans
- External commercial borrowings
- Cash/Credit Loans 1,953,188,220 28,333,935,594
- Finance lease obligation 19,640,679 17,428,382
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Amount Amount
Assets side: outstanding outstanding
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Break-up of Loans and Advances including
2 |bills receivables [other than those included
in (4) below]:
(a)  Secured* 2,816,670,920 1,805,963,084
(b)  Unsecured* 99,943,502,354 72,151,262,346
Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire
3 |and other assets counting towards AFC
activities
i) Lease assets including lease rentals under
. sundry debtors:
& (a)  Financial lease Nil Nil
(b) Operating lease Nil Nil
ii)  Stock on hire including hire charges Nil Nil
under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire Nil Nil
(b) Repossessed Assets Nil Nil
111). '(?ther loans counting towards AFC Nil Nil
activities
(a) Loans where assets have been Nil Nil
repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above Nil Nil
Break-up of Investments:
Current Investments :
1.  Quoted:
@) Shares: (a) Equity Nil Nil
(b) Preference Nil Nil
(ii) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
O ) Others Nil Nil
2. Unquoted:
@) Shares: (a) Equity Nil Nil
(b) Preference Nil Nil
(ii) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
4 |(v) Others Nil Nil
Long Term investments:
1.  Quoted:
i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil Nil
(b) Preference Nil Nil
(ii) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
W) Others Nil Nil qe
2. Ungquoted: )l i o,
) Shares: (a) Equity 10,010 Nil
(b) Preference Nil Nil
(i) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
(v) Others Nil Nil
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

* It Includes advances to credit card customers only.

5 |Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

Amount net of provisions

Category 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Secured U d Total Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties
(a)  Subsidiaries - - - - - -
(b)  Companies in the same group - 2,927,680 2,927,680 - 5,318,584 5,318,584
(c) Other related parties - 94,924,858 94,924,858 - 3,299,206 3,299,206
2. Other than related parties 2,816,670,920 99,845,649,816 102,662,320,736) 1,685,517,762 72,263,089,878 73,948.607,640)

Total 2,816,670,920) 99,943,502,354 102,760,173,274) 1,685,517,762 72,271,707,668| 73,957,225.430

f ™ 6 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and
‘ unquoted):
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
t V. M \%
Marke a]ue./ Book Value arket alue‘/ Book Value (Net of
Category Break up or fair (Net of Provisions) Break up or fair Provisions)
value or NAV value or NAV

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil Nil

(b) Companies in the same group 10,010 10,010 Nil Nil

(c) Other related parties Nil Nil Nil Nil

2. Other than related parties Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total 10,010.00, 10,010.00) -
7 |Other Information 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

Gross Non-Performing Assets
) (a)  Related parties
(b) Other than related parties 1,677,475,055 1,464,543,104

Net Non-Performing Assets

O (i) (a) Related parties
(b)  Other than related parties 1,241,596,970 1,095,223,339

(iii) [Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

(All amounts in Indian
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Rupees)

48. Additional Disclosures
48.1 Capital
. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016
i) CRAR (%) 17.10% 18.13%
ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 12.75% 14.28%
iiiy CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 4.35% 3.85%
iv) Amou.nt of subordinated debt raised as Tier- 5,400,000,000 3.400,000,000
II capital*
S v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt i
\ Instruments )

*Qualifying amount as Tier II Capital (after discounting) as at 31% March 2017 is Rs 4,100,000,000
(Previous Year Rs. 2,580,000,000). Fresh subordinated debt raised as Tier II during Financial Year
2016-17 is Rs. 2,000,000,000 (Previous year Rs 1,000,000,000).

48.2 Investments

Particulars

As at 31st March
2017

As at 31st March
2016

1 Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of Investments
(a) InIndia
(b) Outside India
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
(a) InIndia
(b) Outside India
(iii) Net Value of Investments
(a) InIndia
(b) Outside India
2 Movement of Provisions held towards depreciation on
investments

O

(i) Opening balance

(ii) Add: Provisions madde during the year

(iii) Less: Write-off / write-back of excess provisions
(iv) Closing balance

10,010
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

48.3 Derivatives

48.3.1 Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

. Year ended 31-|Year ended 31-
S. No. Particulars Mar-17 Mar-16
) The notional principal of swap agreements Nil Nil
(ii)  |Losses which would be incurred if
counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations Nil Nil
under the agreements
(iii)  |Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering Nil Nil
into swaps
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the Nil Nil
swaps
v) The fair value of the swap book Nil Nil
48.3.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives
. Year ended 31-|Year ended 31-
S. No. Particulars Mar-17 Mar-16
(6] Notional principal amount of exchange traded Nil Nil
IR derivatives undertaken during the year
(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded Nil Nil
IR derivatives outstanding
(ili)  |Notional principal amount of exchange traded Nil Nil
IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly
effective”
(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR Nil Nil
derivatives outstanding and not "highly
effective”

48.3.3 Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

Qualitative Disclosure

Year ended 31-Mar-17 Year ended 31-Mar-16
S. No. Particulars Currency Interest Rate |Currency Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives

(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)

For hedging | Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil
(ii) Marked to Market Positions

a) Asset (+) Nil Nil Nil Nil

b) Liability (-) Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iii) Credit Exposure Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Unhedged Exposures Nil Nil Nil Nil
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts
48.4.1 Disclosures relating to Securitisation

S. No. Particulars Year ended 31- Year ended 31-
Mar-17 Mar-16
1 |No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for Nil Nil
securitisation transactions
2 |Total amount of securitised assets as per Nil Nil
books of the SPVs sponsored
3 |Total amount of exposures retained by the
NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of Nil Nil
balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures Nil Nil
First loss Nil Nil
Others Nil Nil
b) On-balance sheet exposures Nil Nil
First loss Nil Nil
Others Nil Nil
4 |Amount of exposures to securitisation Nil Nil
transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitizations
First loss Nil Nil
Others Nil Nil
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss Nil Nil
Others Nil Nil
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations Nil Nil
First loss Nil Nil
Others Nil Nil
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss Nil Nil
Others Nil Nil
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts
48.4.2 Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset

Reconstruction
. Year ended 31- Year ended 31-
S. No. Particulars Mar-17 Mar-16
(i) |No. of accounts Nil Nil
(ii) |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of Nil Nil
accounts sold to SC/RC
(iii) |Aggregate consideration Nil Nil
(iv) |Additional consideration realized in respect . .
. . Nil Nil
of accounts transferred in earlier years
(v) |Aggregate gain/ loss over net book value Nil Nil
48.4.3 Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by NBFCs
. Year ended 31- Year ended 31-
S. No. Particulars Mar-17 Mar-16
(1) |No. of accounts Nil Nil
(ii) |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of Nil Nil
accounts sold
(iii) |Aggregate consideration Nil Nil
(iv) |Additional consideration realized in respect . .
. . Nil Nil
of accounts transferred in earlier years
(v) |Aggregate gain / loss over net book value Nil Nil
48.5 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold
Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:
Particulars Year ended 31- Year ended 31-
Mar-17 Mar-2016
1 (a) No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
@ of Fhese, number of accounts restructured Nil Nil
2 during the year
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
Details of Non-performing Financial Assets sold :
Particulars Year ended 31- Year ended 31-
Mar-17 Mar-2016
(a) No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
2|(a) Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil

*The company has not sold any Non-Performing Financial Assets. However, during financial year
2016-17 company has sold the old written off customers balances of Rs 141,0729,395 (43,636
Customers) to Kotak Mahindra Bank for Rs 39,500,000 which is recognised as bad debt

recovered.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

48.7.1 Exposure to Real Estate

Category As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2017 2016
a) |Direct Exposure
(i) Residential Mortgages
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be
occupied by the borrower or that is rented Nil Nil
(ii) Commercial Real Estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail
space, multi-purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi
tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land Nil Nil
acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-
fund based limits.
(D
= Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures
(iii) :-
a. Residential Nil Nil
b. Commercial real Estate Nil Nil
48.7.2 Exposure to Capital Market
As at 31 March | As at31March
Particulars 2017 2016
(i) |direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate Nil Nil
debt;
(ii) |advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to
individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, Nil Nil
convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;
(iii)lad vances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security; Nil Nil
(iv)|advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares
O or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds Nil Nil
i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible
(v) |secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of )
stockbrokers and market makers; Nil Nil
(vi)|loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new Nil Nil
companies in anticipation of raising resources;
(vii]bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; Nil Nil
(viifall exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) Nil Nil
Total Exposure to Capital Market Nil Nil
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

48.8 Details of financing of parent company products

The company has not financed any of the products of its parent company during the financial year
2016-2017.

48.9 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC

The company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year ended 31 March 2017.

48.10 Miscellaneous
48.10.1 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company has also obtained registration from the following regulators apart from RBL

Registration Authority Registration No.
Certificate of Incorporatoin under Companies Act 1956 U65999DL1998PTC093849

Insurance Regulatory and Dewvelopment Authority Regulations 2002 [RSA 2105154

48.10.2 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

No penalties have been imposed by any regulators during financial year 2016-2017.
48.10.3 Related Party Transactions

For related party transaction refer note No.31.
48.10.4 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

The company has been assigned short term debt rating of A1+ by CRISIL and ICRA and Long
term debt rating of AAA by CRISIL and ICRA. There is no change in the rating during financial
year 2016-2017.

48.10.5 Revenue Recognition

There is no circumstance in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the

resolution of significant uncertainties.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts
49 Additional Disclosures

49.1 Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under As at 31 March | Asat 31 March
the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 2017 2016
Provisions for depreciation on Investment - -
Provision towards NPA 435,878,085 369,319,764
Provision made towards Income Tax 2,311,313,477 1,458,811,156
Provision for Long Service Awards 8,441,889 4,705,715
Provision for reward points redemption 2,300,575,604 1,532,288,907
Provision for Gratuity 31,987,063 3,457,738
Provision for Compensated absences 34,716,370 23,187,528
Provision for Employee stock option 1,327,748 2,461,753
Provision for Bonus & Incentive Payable 90,184,109 67,963,138
Provision for Other Expenses* 1,535,866,209 1,000,095,654
Provision for Other taxes 4,235,604 4,235,604
Provision for Standard Assets 404,330,793 289,970,729

* Includes accrued expenses for which services/goods received but the invoices are awaited.

49.2 Draw Down from reserves

There is no draw down from the reserves during the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

49.3 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

49.3.1 Concentration of Advances

Particulars As at 31 March As at 31 March
2017 2016
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers* 1,212,213,729 767,539,243
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total
Advances of the NBFC 1.18% 1.04%

*In case of Corporate Cards, the advances include all the credit cards advances to that Corporate in total.

49.3.2 Concentration of Exposures

Particulars

As at 31 March
2017

As at 31 March
2016

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers*

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers

to Total Exposures of the NBFC on borrowers/customers

3,344,653,448

0.52%

2,870,367,738

0.59%

#In case of Corporate Cards, the exposure includes all the credit cards exposure to that Corporate in total.

*The exposure here denotes the total credit card limit against the top twenty borrowers.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

49.3.3 Concentration of NPAs

Particulars As at 31 March As at 31 March
2017 2016
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts™ 3,658,738 2,650,005

*The exposure to NPA is only the principle outstanding. The income is fully de-recognised and limit is
already blocked for these customers.

49.3.4 Sector wise NPAs
SINo. Sector %A‘;fvl:i‘:: lt:: tTh‘::‘l Asat31 March | Asat31March
2017 2016
sector
1 |Agriculture & allied activities
2 |MSME
Corporate borrowers - Credit
3 |Cards* 0.04% 544,174 167,139
4 | Services
5 Unsecured personal loans
6 | Auto loans
Other personal loans - Credit
7 |Cards 1.66% 1,676,930,881 1,464,375,965

*In case of Corporate Cards, the NPA includes all the credit cards exposure to that Corporate in total. % of
NPA is for FY 2016-17.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

49.4 Movement of NPAs
Particulars As at 31 March As at 31 March
2017 2016
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 1.21% 1.49%

Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance
(b) Additions during the year
(c) Reductions during the year
(d) Closing balance

(ii) Movement of NPAs (Net)
(a) Opening balance
(b) Additions during the year
(c) Reductions during the year
(d) Closing balance

... Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding
(iif) provisions on standard assets)

(a) Opening balance
(b) Provisions made during the year
(c) Write-off / write-back of excess
(d) Closing balance

1,464,543,104
5,083,467,001
4,870,535,050
1,677,475,055

1,095,223,340
3,799,274,918
3,652,901,288
1,241,596,970

369,319,764
1,284,192,084
1,217,633,763

435,878,085

1,068,975,034
3,864,431,647
3,468,863,577
1,464,543,104

798,130,519
2,898,323,735
2,601,230,915
1,095,223,339

270,844,515
966,107,912
867,632,663
369,319,764

49.5 Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

There is no overseas asset as at 31 March 2017.

49.6 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

There is no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the company during the year ended 31 March 2017.

49.7 Disclosures of Customers Complaints

S.no Particulars As at 31 March | Asat 31 March
2017 2016
(a) |No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 425 529
(b) |No. of complaints received during the year 20,432 25,880
(c) |No. of complaints redressed during the year 20,575 25,984
(d) |No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 282 425

50. Disclosure of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th
November 2016 to 30th December 2016 as envisaged in Notification G.S.R 308(E) dated 30th March

2017

The company is a credit card NBFC with 4.1 million cardholders at the end of Oct'16 across India. The
cardholders have been provided with 14 modes to pay their credit card outstanding and cash is permitted in

only two modes. Cash payments by customers account for around 3% of total collections.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

The Government of India had announced the scheme to withdraw legal tender character of the old Bank
Notes in the denominations of Rs. 500 and Rs. 1,000 on 8th Nov’2016. These Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)
were allowed to be deposited during 10" Nov’16 to 30" Dec’16 at any of the bank branches/other specified
places. Subsequently, RBI also issued a clarification on 16th Nov’16 in the form of FAQs that deposit of
SBNSs is allowed into all types of deposit/loan accounts.

Since the Reserve Bank of India had allowed deposit of SBNs into all types of deposit/loan accounts,
accordingly as a matter of prudence, the Company had made a representation on 17" Nov’17, to the
Reserve Bank of India, Department of Currency Management seeking clarity on collection of the
outstanding dues from its customers in SBNs through its collection agencies along with customer
declaration and PAN details for onward submission to the Bank. After follow up by the company, the
Department of Currency Management, Reserve Bank of India vide their email dated 22™ Nov’16, expressed
their inability to accede to the Company’s request for allowing its collection agents to accept SBNs towards
card dues.

Following is the details of cash collections during 8" Nov’16 to 30" Dec’ 16 period :-

Mode 1: The company directly collects cash from delinquent cardholders through around 200 plus
collection agencies spread across India on our behalf. Agencies deposit cash with aggregator (SBI CMP)
which in turn transfer the amount to Company’s bank account through bank transfer hence no cash is
directly held & transacted by the Company. All the agencies were clearly instructed not to collect the SBNs
from any customers with effect from 9™ Nov'16 onwards. However, we observed that some of the agencies
inadvertently collected some of the SBNs as follows:-

Other
Denomination
Particulars SBN's Notes Total

Closing cash in hand with agencies as on
08.11.2016 18,478,500 911,883 19,390,383
(+) Receipts (collected by agencies) 915,170 144,947,650 145,862,820
(-) Payments - - B
(-) Amount deposited in banks 19,393,670 141,996,914 161,390,584
Closing cash in hand with agencies as on
30.12.2016 3,862,619 3,862,619

Mode 2: The company offers Over The Counter (OTC) mode of payment to its cardholders' wherein they
can walk in any branch of SBI bank, SBI Associates, Oriental Bank of Commerce, Karur Vyasa Bank,
Bank of Maharashtra and deposit the credit card dues through cash directly in the bank accounts without
any knowledge and control of the company gover denominations at the time of deposit.
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SBI CARDS AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

However, the Company requested all these bank for the details of SBNs directly collected by them and
following is the details received:-

Other
Denomination
Particulars SBN's Notes Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 - - -

(+) Receipts*(Directly deposited by

customers in bank) 1,142,906,033 1,347,231 1,144,253,264
P (-) Payments - _ )

( -y
(-) Amount deposited in banks 1,142,906,033 1,347,231 1,144,253,264
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - - -

* The above receipts does not include cash deposited amounting to Rs. 46,347,425 (deposited by 3,218
cardholders) for which no segregation of currency denomination could be provided by banks.

For Gandhi Minocha & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 000458N

‘ Dlrector Comtpany ecretary
DIN 0S99 DIN: O[4{95%6  Payal Mittal

Membershlp No.: 092867

xecutive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Vijay Jasuja Praveen Kumar Singh

Date: L0 )b“\ )’bﬁ Date: ) N\) Yy %

Place: Nyuus Dy Place: News Degim \T’G Q(H
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INDIAN AUDIT & ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF THE BIRECTOR GENERALOF
COMMERCIAL AUDIT & EX-DFFICIO MEMBER,
AUDIT BOARD - I, NEW DELHI
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (L) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF 5BI CARDS & PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Tie preparation of financiel statements of SBI Cards & Poyment Services Private Limiled for
the year ended 31 March 2017 in sccordunce with the financind repening framework preseribed
undzr the Campanics Act, 2013 {Act) is the responsibility of 1he management of the company.
The siminery suditor cppainied by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
139(3) ol the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under secijon
143 of the Act based an independent audit in accordance with standerds an ouditing presceibed
under seciion 143(40) of the Act. This is staizd to have been dope by them vide their Audit
Report dated 27 April 2017,

I, on behalf of the Compwoller and Awditor General of India, have conducied a
supplementary audit under section 143(6} {3) aF the Act of the financial statements of S8) Cards
& Payment Servicss Private Limited for the yeor ended 31 March 2017, This supplemeniacy audit
has been carried ut independently without access 1o the working papers of the Statutory auditors
ond is limited primasily 10 inquiries of the stuwiary auditers and company personne! and g
selective exomination of some of ihe accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing
significant has come 1o my knowledge which would give rise 10 ony comment upon or

supplement to swatutory avditors’ eport.

For gnd on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditer General of India

19 el
(Nondane Munshi)
Director General of Commereial Audit
& Ex-officio Member, Audit Board-11
New Dethi
Place: New Delhi
Date:




